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Vision

The vision of Hinopak Motors Limited is to provide the society
with safe, economical, comfortable and environment friendly means

of transportation by manufacturing and supplying commercial
vehicles and services.

Mission Statement / Corporate Strategy
TO PURSUE OUR VISION, WE COMMIT OURSELVES:

To our individual, institutional and international customers: to deliver high
quality, safe, durable, reliable, comfortable, environment friendly and
economical products and services to their total satisfaction;

To our employees: to foster corporate culture of mutual trust, respect for
fundamental human rights at work, opportunities for professional growth

and personal welfare so that they are proud of being a member of the
"Hinopak Family";

To the community and our nation: to contribute to economic and social

development by providing means of transportation and by progressive
localization of the vehicles; and

To the shareholders: to act in compliance with the norms expected of a
subsidiary of the Toyota Group of Companies and make a meaningful
financial return to the shareholders.
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Basic Principles of Hinopak
Code of Conduct

5.

We develop and provide outstanding products and services that fulfill the demands of
customers with sufficient attention given to safety and the environment and we aim to be
an enterprise which has a significant presence in the commercial vehicle market.

We undertake open and fair corporate activities in conformity with the spirit and letter of
laws. We maintain sound and transparent relationships with governmental and
administrative entities.

We build and maintain good communications with society as well as our stakeholders, and
we are commiitted to accurate and timely disclosure of information.

We recognize that an environmental preservation activity is an integral part of our
business, and we voluntarily and actively promote and engage in environmental
preservation activities as an indispensable condition for Hinopak's corporate existence and
activities.

We recognize the inherent dignity and fundamental human rights of all members of the
Hino family and therefore respect and support the practice of human rights.

We actively promote and engage in philanthropic activities as a member of Hino Motors
Ltd. and the Toyota Group, and as a good corporate citizen.

We respect the right of workers at the workplace and their right of freedom of association
and the right to organize and bargain collectively. We believe in transparency, mutual trust
and respect for each others' rights and obligations and need for bilateral dialogue and
cooperation between employees and management for achieving decent work with safe
and healthy work environment, growth and excellence in business performance.

We take a resolute stand against antisocial power and organizations, and we act in
compliance with ethical standards and sound social values.

We respect and abide the law of the land and applicable rules and the diversity of customs
and culture and we contribute to development in the communities through our business
activities.

10. We support the principles of Global Compact and expect our employees to embrace them

in the work culture of our enterprise for sustainable growth and development.

We pledge to comply and enforce the basic principles of Hinopak's Code of Conduct and
prevent its violation through the mechanism already in place fromenforcing discipline,
Company wide. Any member of Hinopak family observing any violation or abuse of this
code of conduct may bring the same to the notice of the Management Committee or the
Audit Committee in writing directly or through the suggestion boxes for hecessary
consideration and action.
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Company Information

BANKERS

Allied Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Citibank, N.A.

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
United Bank Limited

AUDITORS
A.F.Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR
Sayeed & Sayeed

REGISTERED OFFICE

D-2, S.I.T.E., Manghopir Road
P.O. Box No. 10714
Karachi-75700, Pakistan

Tel: 111-25-25-25

Website: www.hinopak.com
Email: info@hinopak.com

SHARE REGISTRAR

M/s. FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Ltd,

8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6,
P.E.C.H.S., Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi

Tel: 021-34380101-05,

Fax: 021-34380106

Email : info.shares@famco.com.pk

AREA OFFICES

Lahore

19 KM, Multan Road, Lahore

Tel: 042-37512003-6

Fax: 042-37512005

Email: hino-lahore@hinopak.com

Islamabad

1- D, Unit 14,

Rehmat Plaza, 2nd Floor

Blue Area, Islamabad

Tel: 051-2276234

Fax: 051-2272268

Email: hino-islamabad@hinopak.com

Quetta

Second Floor Room No. 31

Al Zain Center, Zarghoon Road
Quetta

Tel: 081-2869174

Fax: 081-2869175

Email: hino-quetta@hinopak.com

Peshawar

1.7 KM from G. T. Road to Kohat Road Section,
Near Jamil Chowk beside Shell Filling Station,
Ring Road, Peshawar.

Tel: 091 - 2322530

Fax: 091 - 2322550
Email: hino-peshawar@hinopak.com

Multan

Kayan Pur, Tehsil Multan,
Union Council No. 73,

Near: Multan, Bypass, Multan
Tel: 061-4263205-7

Fax: 061-4263208
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Muhammad Aslam Sanjrani
Chairman

Mr. Muhammad Aslam Sanjrani was
appointed in November 2013 as
non-executive director of the Company and
Chairman of the board of directors.

He joined the Civil Service of Pakistan in 1971
and served 35 years in a variety of posts
that included Administration assignments
like District Magistrate, Commissioner (of
Hyderabad and Larkana  divisions),
Secretary to the Government of Sindh and
Balochistan, Autonomous and regulatory
Bodies. He has worked in the Ministries of
Commerce, Political affairs, Industries and
Production and Foreign Affairs besides
being the Secretary to the Government of
Pakistan for Overseas Pakistanis. He was
also the Chief Secretary of Sindh Province.
Presently, he is enrolled as an Advocate
of the High Court.

During the service, he has represented
Pakistan at International Forums including
the World International Tourism
Conference, World Bank, Asian
Development Bank. He has enjoyed a very
credible status amongst the international
Donor Agencies with whom he
successfully negotiated Loan agreement.
He has been a sportsman having had the
distinction of representing Pakistan
cricket at all levels except test cricket. He
has very successfully organized World
Squash Championship in Karachi. Further,
he has played badminton and table tennis
at national level.
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Board of Directors

Yoshihiko Nanami
President & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yoshihiko Nanami was appointed as
President & Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and member of Human
Resource and Remuneration Committee in
March 2019. He has diversified working
experience of over 22 years at various
positions. Mr. Nanami has completed his
studies from Keio University, Japan with
major in Economics.

Shigeru Tsuchiya
Director & Executive Vice President

Mr. Shigeru Tsuchiya was appointed as the
Executive Vice President of the Company
in July 2018. He worked in the versatile roles
in Tomen Corporation Japan from 1988 to
2006. He has diversified working
experience in different leadership roles
mainly in the Asian Markets.

Mushtaq Malik
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Mushtaq Malik is the independent
non-executive director, Chairman of the
Audit Committee and Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Currently he is also the Director of Askari
Bank Limited and Chairman of MM
Management Consultants.

He has served on the boards of Habib
Bank Limited and Eco Bank, Istanbul. He has
also Chaired Pakistan Electronic and Media
Regulatory Authority (PEMRA) and worked
as Federal Secretary to the Board of
Investment Pakistan. He holds Master's
degree in Economics and Business
Administration with specialization in
International Business Management and
Finance.




Nargis Ali Akbar Ghaloo
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Nargis Ghaloo is an Independent
non-executive director and member of
the Board's Audit Committee of the
Company. She is also serving in the same
capacity with JS bank Limited in addition
to Risk Management Committee of the
Bank.

Ms. Ghaloo is a retired senior civil servant
having served the Government of
Pakistan in various capacities for 36 years.
She retired as the Managing Director
Public Procurement Regulatory
Authority, Government of Pakistan. Ms.
Ghaloo was Chairperson of State Life
Insurance Corporation of Pakistan,
Pakistan’s largest life assurer, from 2014
to 2016. She is also the Chairperson of
Alpha Insurance Company Limited.

Ms. Ghaloo joined the Civil Services of
Pakistan in 1982, has many years of
professional experience serving in senior
management positions with provincial as
well as federal government departments
in diversified fields such as public sector
management, administration, financial,
judicial, health, insurance and planning.

Ms. Ghaloo did her Masters in English from
University of Sindh in 1981 and is a
Certified Director from The Pakistan
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG)
and holds Certificate of Corporate
Governance from INSEAD and also holds a
Certificate in Company Direction from
Institute of Directors, UK.
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Shuichi Kaneko
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shuichi Kaneko was appointed in
April 2017 as non-executive director of the
Company, member of the Audit
Committee and Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee. He joined
Hino Motors Limited Japan in 1982.

Hitoshi Otomo
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hitoshi Otomo was appointed in
February 2020 as non-executive director
of the Company, member of the Audit
Committee and Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee. He joined Hino
Motors Limited Japan in 1981.

Syed Junaid Ali
Company Secretary

Mr. Junaid is a Chartered Accountant from
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and a certified director from
Institute of Business Administration
Karachi. He joined Hinopak Motors
Limited in 20711. In addition to the role of
Company Secretary he is responsible for
Financial Reporting, Taxation, Treasury
and Legal Affairs of the Company. Before
joining Hinopak Motors Limited he has
worked with KPMG Taseer Hadi and Co
& Dawood Family Takaful Limited.

Hinopak Motors Limited
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Board Committees

Audit Committee Terms of Reference

Mushtaq Malik - Chairman Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard Company's assets;
(Independent Director)
Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the
Nargis Ali Akbar Ghaloo Company, prior to the approval by the Board of Directors;
(Independent Director) Review of management letter issued by external auditors and
management's response thereto and monitor the action plan to

Shuichi Kaneko improve the control environment;

(Non - Executive Director)
Review of the scope and extent of internal audit and ensuring that the
Hitoshi Otomo internal audit function has adequate resources and is appropriately
(Non - Executive Director) placed within the Company;

Ascertaining that the internal control system including financial and
operational controls, accounting system and reporting structure are
adequate and effective;

Nasir Manzoor
(Secretary)

Instituting special projects, other investigations on any matter
specified by the Board of Directors, and to refer any matter to the
external auditors or to any other external body;

Monitoring compliance with relevant statutes and best practices of
Corporate Governance; and

Review arrangement for staff and management to report to audit
committee in confidence, concerns, if any, about actual or potential
improprieties in financial and other matters and recommend instituting
remedial and mitigating measures.

Human Resource &

Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference

Mushtaq Malik - Chairman « Recommending human resource management policies to the board;
(Independent Director)
 Recommending to the board the selection, evaluation, compensation
Yoshihiko Nanami (including retirement benefits) and succession planning of the CEO;

 Recommending to the board the selection, evaluation, compensation
(including retirement benefits) of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit;

Shigeru Tsuchiya

Shuichi Kaneko
(Non - Executive Director) Recommending to the board for consideration and approval of policy
framework for determining the remuneration of directors and Senior
Hitoshi Otomo Management personnel (first layer of management below the chief
(Non - Executive Director) executive officer level);

Considering and approving on recommendations of CEO on such

Fahim Aijaz Sabzwari -0 -
matters for key management positions who report directly to CEO;

(Secretary)
Ensure annual evaluation of members of the board and board
committees; and

Recommending to the Chairman of the board the performance
evaluation of the board as whole.
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Functional Committees

Management Committee Terms of Reference

Yoshihiko Nanami Managing the day to day operations of the Company;
(Chairman)
Developing the business and marketing strategy of the Company;

Shigeru Tsuchiya L. .
Reviewing budgetary proposals and the necessary actions to

Masahiko Kondo implement the business plan;

. . . Monitoring profitability and deviations from business plan; and
Fahim Aijaz Sabzwari

Handling the major business issues and other urgent matters on behalf
Naushad Riaz of the Board.

Adil Mohiuddin Shah
Mehmood Ahmed Khan
Syed Samad Siraj
Muhammad Zahid Hasan
Ahsan Waseem Akhtar
Salman Abdul Wahab
Misbah Uddin Khan Akozai

Abdul Basit
(Secretary)

Whistle Blowing Committee Terms of Reference

Yoshihiko Nanami « Establishing, implementing and maintaining the Whistle Blowing
(Chairman) Mechanism;

Shigeru Tsuchiya Monitoring and ensuring the transparency of the Whistle Blowing
Process;

Fahim Aijaz Sabzwari Reviewing and analyzing periodically the feedback and complains
. obtained through the mechanism;

Abdul Basit
Designating and supervising the officer investigating with regards to
Ahsan Waseem Akhtar any matter reported through the Whistle Blowing Mechanism; and
(Secretary)
Initiating steps to ensure compliance with the Hinopak Code of
Conduct, transparency in financial reporting and safeguard of
Company's assets.
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Chairman’s Review /

> O

The unprecedented coronavirus pandemic is causing confounding global turmoil with an
uncertain outlook everywhere. In such a distressful situation, on behalf of the Board, | hope that
you and your beloved ones are in good health. Since March this year, globally inclusive of state of
Pakistan, it's “STAY SAFE, STAY HOME / INDOORS".

Given the magnitude of the damage caused by the virus and public health concern looping across
the globe, we have decided to assist members of Hinopak Motors Limited by providing them a
video link facility for attending the 35th Annual General Meeting of the Company. On behalf of the
Board of Directors, | welcome you and hereby share with you the performance for the year ended
March 31, 2020.

This has been a tough year for not only the Company but for the automotive sector and
businesses across the Country. Since our Company is operating in an import oriented sector it
was significantly impacted due to continued devaluation of Pak Rupee against US Dollar, from US
Dollar 140.7 on March 31, 2019 to reach as high as US Dollar 168.75 during the year and closing at
US Dollar 166.75 on March 31, 2020 resulting in higher input cost. This situation further
deteriorated due to contraction of economy resulting in decrease in market size from 8810 units
to 4934 units and double figure inflation. THE GROWTH RATE OF -0.4% IN THE COUNTRY PUT THE
ECONOMY TO VIRTUALLY A KIND OF STANDSTILL.

The external factors that were showing some improvements with reduction of current account
deficit during early part of the FY20 and consequent decrease in interest rates towards the end of
current financial year was balancing that little activity; however, outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
brought down all economies across the globe including Pakistan in almost a state of halt.
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HINOPAK BUSINESS

Market Share and Sales

In the period of economic commotion, the
commercial vehicle industry of Pakistan
showed downward trend and the total market
size decreased by 44% approximately. Overall
economic downturn remains major contributor
in reduction of sales volume of the Company.

The Company’s market share stands at 31.5%
and 41.5% in the truck and bus segment
respectively.

Gross (Loss) / Profit

The gross loss stood at Rs. 170 million as against
the gross profit of Rs. 1,113 million in the prior
year. Drop in sales volume and rising import
cost were main contributors in the incurrence
of gross loss during the year.
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Distribution and Administrative Expenses

The management remained committed to
controlling the cost and accordingly meticulous
cost cutting initiatives were taken in the areas
of distribution and administrative expenses
which led to reduction of expenses to Rs. 707
million as compared to Rs. 738 million in
previous year.

Interest Cost

During the year, short term borrowings reduced
by over Rs. 2.6 billion through stringent
measures of management for liquidating
inventories. However, for most of the year
borrowing rate prevailed around 14% resulting
in interest cost of Rs. 836 million.

Loss after tax

The Company posted a loss after tax of Rs. 2.05
billion as compared to previous year after tax
loss of Rs. 873.3 million. Loss per share stood at
Rs. 165.71 as compared to Rs. 70.42 of last year.



Capital Expenditure

The management is constantly monitoring the
Capex and only such Capex is allowed which is
very essential for the business however,
considering the needs of its customers, the
Company established a 3S model (Sales, Service
& Support) facility in the strategic location of
Multan to improve after sales services of
approximately Rs. 356 million.

Dividend
Considering the financial position of the
Company, the directors of the Company have
decided not to pay any divided, cash or
otherwise.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER
The Company paid Rs. 1.8 billion approximately

in taxes, duties, levies and cess to the
Government.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board Performance & Role in achieving
Company's Objectives

In pursuant to the requirements of Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019, a formal & effective
mechanism is put in place for an annual
evaluation of performance of the Board,
Members of Board & its Sub-Committees. The
mechanism has been duly established,
approved and successfully implemented by the
Board.

There were changes in the Board during the
year due to elections of directors held in
November 2019 and filling of casual vacancies
with well-versed individuals as detailed in
Directors’ Report. The Board comprise of
adequate number of Independent and
Non-Executive Directors with highly qualified
members from diversified backgrounds. The
Board played an indispensable role in achieving
the Company’s objectives by providing
oversight, guidance, strategic direction,
assessing strategy & underlying purpose of
actions taken by Management and monitoring

of the Company’s Performance towards
achievement of its objectives.

On the basis of each Individual Director’s
feedback and thereby consolidated evaluated
results, average rating of the Board, Individual
Directors & Committees performance has been
found satisfactory & effective.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With little progress on development of vaccine
for COVID-19, uncertainty in overall economic
outlook seems a new normal. Projections for
GDP growth rate remain around 2% for FY21 and
no real incentive was provided for automotive
sector in the budget for FY21 posting a
challenging outlook for the business going
forward but the good news is that the
Government decision to open the construction
sector, with no question asked which in the
coming months may mitigate the downward
slide of the economy and improve the demand
in the allied industries such as cement, steel and
others resulting in somewhat an increase in the
demand in the automotive sector.

It remains of paramount importance for the
Government to assess possible economic
scenarios and promptly respond to
developments unfolding rapidly. Despite the
apprehensions, the Company remains
committed to turn current challenges into
business opportunities to revive its profitability.

VOTE OF THANKS

Lastly, on behalf of the Board of Directors, |
would like to thank all the shareholders for their
continued trust and confidence in the Company
despite the difficult times.

N 5

Muhamntad Aslam Sanjrani
Chairman
Date: July 27, 2020
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Directors' Report

The Directors take pleasure in presenting this report, together with the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.

The Board of Directors of the Company as at March 31, 2020 consists of:

Total number of Directors:

a) Male 06
b) Female o1
Composition:
a) Independent Directors
- Male o1
- Female o1
b) Non- Executive Directors 03
c) Executive Directors 02

Changes in Board during the year

Casual Vacancies:

During the year, following two casual vacancies occurred in the Board:

Outgoing Directors New Directors Appointment Date of New Directors
a) Mr. Takehito Sasaki Mr. Masahiko Kondo August 01, 2019
b) Mr. Masato Nishihara Mr. Hitoshi Otomo February 01, 2020

Election of Directors:

The composition of the Board is revised from nine to seven directors in the elections of directors
held on November 28, 2019, in the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company for the next
term effective from December 03, 2019. Accordingly, as at March 31, 2020, the Board comprised
of the following directors:

1

2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Mr. Muhammad Aslam Sanjrani
Mr. Yoshihiko Nanami

Mr. Shigeru Tsuchiya

Mr. Mushtaq Malik

Ms. Nargis Ali Akbar Ghaloo
Mr. Hitoshi Otomo

Mr. Shuichi Kaneko
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During the year four meetings of the Board were held in which the attendance by each Director
is as follows:

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended

Mr. Muhammad Aslam Sanjrani
Mr. Yoshihiko Nanami

Mr. Shigeru Tsuchiya

Mr. Takehito Sasaki*

Mr. Shuichi Kaneko

Mr. Mushtaq Malik

Mr. Koji Nagata**

Mr. Masato Nishihara*

Mr. Satoshi Sase**

Mr. Masahiko Kondo**

Ms. Nargis Ali Akbar Ghaloo
Mr. Hitoshi Otomo™***

O =l =t WW=WHMN=2N~MNN

Leave of absence was granted to the members who did not attend the Board meetings.

* The above directors resigned during the year and the casual vacancies were filled as
mentioned above.

** The above directors are not part of the revised composition of the Board after the election of
directors held on November 28, 2019.

***Mr. Hitoshi Otomo was appointed on the Board on February 01, 2020, since then no meeting of
the Board was held till year end.

Committees of the Board

The Board has formed two sub committees namely Audit Committee and Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given
below: -

a) Audit Committee

e Mushtaq Malik - Chairman
< Nargis Ali Akbar Ghaloo

o  Shuichi Kaneko

e  Hitoshi Otomo

b) HR and Remuneration Committee
e Mushtaq Malik - Chairman

«  Yoshihiko Nanami

« Shigeru Tsuchiya

o  Shuichi Kaneko

e  Hitoshi Otomo

During the year four meetings of Audit Committee were held in which the attendance by each
Director is as follows:
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Name of Directors
Mr. Mushtaq Malik

Ms. Nargis Ali Akbar Ghaloo
Mr. Shuichi Kaneko

Mr. Koji Nagata**

Mr. Masato Nishihara*

Mr. Satoshi Sase**

Mr. Hitoshi Otomo***

Number of meetings attended

O WW=N=W

Leave of absence was granted to the members who did not attend the audit committee meetings.
* The above director resigned during the year and the casual vacancy was duly filled as mentioned
above.

** The above directors are not part of the revised composition of the Audit Committee after the
election of directors held on November 28, 2019.

*»*Mr. Hitoshi Otomo was appointed in the Audit Committee on February 01, 2020, since then no
meeting of the Audit Committee was held till year end.

Principal Activities of the Company and Changes concerning the nature of the Business

Hinopak Motors Limited (the Company) is incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited Company and
is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company's principal activity is the assembly,
progressive manufacturing and sale of Hino buses and trucks.

The Company is striving to create a framework for long-term customer satisfaction, from vehicle
sale to its final usage, through various efforts including supplying parts in a timely manner and
enhancing the quality of after sales services. To accomplish this objective, the company expands its
business by establishing a state of the art 3S Dealership in Multan for it’s customers.

Appropriation of Loss
Following are the details of appropriations:

Year ended
March 31,
2020

Year ended
March 31,
2019

Rupees in ‘000

Loss before taxation (1,843,998) (520,174)
Taxation (210,978) (353,123)
Loss after taxation (2,054,976) (873,297)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets on account

of Incremental depreciation and disposal of fixed assets 47,981 47,235
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year (9,526) (4,855)
Unappropriated profit brought forward 1,335,362 3,028,366
Available for appropriation (681,159) 2,197,449
Final cash dividend paid during the year - (862,087)
Unappropriated (loss) / profit carried forward (681,159) 1,335,362
Loss per share Rs. (165.71) Rs. (70.42)
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Development & Performance of the Company’s Business, Reasons for the Loss and Future Prospects
of Profit

Overall economic slowdown, rising inflation, deterioration of Pak Rupee against US Dollar and finally
the rapid spread of the COVID-19 virus since February 2020 brought economic activity to a near-halt
throughout Pakistan. All these factors alongside the increasing competitiveness of the heavy
vehicles market in Pakistan impacted the Company’s sales, profitability and liquidity throughout the
year. The managements’ rigorous efforts including but not limited to timely initiatives of cost
reduction and price increase curb the impact of these adversities to a great extent, still the current
fiscal year sadly ended with a loss of Rs. 2.05 billion.

Amid this slow economic growth trajectory and expectation of further deterioration of Pak Rupee
against US Dollar in the long run the Company initially aims to maintain stability and establish a
sound platform to foster growth.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Pakistan economy slowed significantly, as the coronavirus outbreak weigh heavily on activity.
Economic growth is set to fall to a multi-decade low as private consumption shrinks considerably
amid widespread containment measures from March onwards by the government. For the fiscal year
ending June 2021, the government itself set a very marginal economic growth target of around 2%,
which means very less amount will be allocated to public sector development programs and
accordingly, the demand for commercial vehicles will also be affected along with exchange rate
fluctuations particularly of Pakistani Rupee and Japanese Yen against US Dollar.

Appointment of Auditors

The present auditors, Messrs. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. The directors endorse recommendation of the Audit
Commiittee for the re-appointment of Messrs. A. F. Ferguson & Co. as the auditors for the financial
year ending March 31, 2021 on such terms and conditions and remuneration as to be decided.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as at March 31, 2020 and additional information thereabout required
under Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 are disclosed on page 76
and page 77 respectively.

Holding Company
Since October 19, 1998, Hino Motors Ltd. Japan, is the Holding Company of Hinopak Motors Limited,
by virtue of its 59.33% shareholding in the Company.

Adequacy of Internal Control
The Board of the Company is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the Company's
system of internal control in order to identify and manage risks faced by the Company.

The Board is confident that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored.

Dividend
Considering the financial position of the Company, the directors of the Company have decided not to
pay any dividend, cash or otherwise.
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Subsequent Events
No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken
place between the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

Compliance with the Best Practices of Corporate Governance

The Board is pleased to state that the management of the Company is compliant with the best
practices of corporate governance. The Board acknowledges its responsibility in respect of the
corporate and financial reporting framework and thus states that:

« The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

« Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

- Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements except as disclosed and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment;

- International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of financial statements;

» The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

« There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern;

o There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the regulations of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange;

- The highlights of operating and financial data for the last six years are given on page 17 ; and

« The value of investments of the Company's Provident, Gratuity and Pension Funds as on March 31,
2020 were as follows:

Rupees in thousand
Hinopak Motors Limited Employees' Provident Fund 254,201
Hinopak Motors Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund 269,454
Hinopak Motors Limited Employees' Pension Fund 428,556

Trading of Shares of the Company

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the directors, executives and their spouses and minor children
have not traded in the shares of the Company. The threshold set by the Fourth schedule of the
Companies Act, 2017, for disclosure of the term “executive”, in annual report, constitutes employee
whose annual basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million in a year.

Corporate Social Responsibility / Impact on environment

Over the years our Company has contributed significantly towards the welfare of the society in the
shape of various socially responsible activities. However, due to current financial position of the
Company the CSR activities also remained limited.

During the year, various 'Education for All' programs were carried out whereby scholarships were
granted to 10 engineering students, books were distributed in SITE Model Govt. School and free
Computer Training was launched for Govt. School students. Additionally, 60 students from various
universities were engaged in HPML Paid Internship Program.

In healthcare, the Company joined hands with Pakistan Eye Bank Society to arrange Free Eye &
Dental Camps in various spots of Karachi including one at DEWA Academy of Deaf & Dumb Children.
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With the hope of reviving its profitability, the Company remains fully committed to further enhance
its contribution towards society.

Significant features of remuneration policy of Non-Executive Directors
Chairman of the Board of Directors is entitled for consultancy fee along with fee for attending the
meetings.

Non-executive directors including the independent director are entitled only for fee for attending the
meetings (except foreign directors).

The remuneration of the President / Chief Executive Officer during the year amounts to Rs. 3.14
million (2019: Rs. 10.26 million).

The remuneration of Chairman for attending Board meetings during the year amounts to Rs. 0.33
million (2019: Rs. 0.38 miillion) and consultancy fee paid to the Chairman amounts to Rs. 3.6 million
(2019: Rs. 3.52 million).

Further details of the remuneration of directors including Chief Executive Officer is detailed in the
note no. 31 on page no. 69 in annexed financial statements’ notes.

Chairman's Review

The accompanied Chairman's Review covers the performance of the Company, significant deviations
from last year in operating results, significant plans and future outlook. The Board endorses the
contents of the review.

By order of the Board
n s<h 8] 4
0
Director Chief Executive Officer

Dated: July 27,2020
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Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive Income
(Rs. in Million)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Gross Profit / (Loss)

Operating Profit / (Loss)

Profit / (Loss) before Tax

Taxation

Profit / (Loss) after Tax

Other comprehensive loss

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
Dividend

Unappropriated Profit / (Loss) carried forward

Financial Position (Rs. in Million)

Fixed Assets

Other Long Term Assets
Current Assets

Less: Current Liabilities
Total

Financed By

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Capital
Reserves / Accumulated Profit / (Loss)
Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets
Long Term / Deferred tax Liabilities
Total

Cash Flow (Rs. in Million)

Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities

Turnover (Rs. in Million)

Hino Chassis

Bus & Other Bodies
Spare Parts

Others

Total

Production (Units)
Hino Chassis

Bus & Other Bodies
Hilux Frame

Annual Report 2020
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2014-15

12,636.29
1,973.38
1,434.42
1,552.59

479.37
1,073.22
2.60
33.43
468.00
2,354.69

2,006.19
34.01
6,181.54
4,054.27
4,167.47

124.01
2,645.92
1,216.15
181.39
4,167.47

1,876.13
(163.7)
(466.45)

9,555.82
1,077.54
248.79
1,754.14
12,636.29

174
1517
4496

2015-16

18,086.85
2,762.08
2,031.75
1,727.04
613.67
1113.38
20.51
3110
804.92
2,673.73

2,207.72
20.59
7,436.02
5134.31
4,530.02

124.01
2,964.73
1,199.56
241.72
4,530.02

214421
(343.55)
(801.95)

16,179.82
960.56
353.90
592.57

18,086.85

2999
470
5304

2016-17

22,477.50
2,466.10
1,776.93

1,696.71
576.81
1,119.90
19.07
32.25
1M3.32
2,693.49

2,841.70
32.62
7,188.42
5,013.91
5,048.83

124.01
2,984.49
1,659.14
28119
5,048.83

586.94
(269.49)
(1,110.09)

20,382.37
933.31
463.22
698.60
22,477.50

3750
474
6656

2017-18

26,615.07
3,034.44
2,348.55
1,669.55
520.17
1,149.38
16.61
42.00
839.89
3,028.37

3,109.37
29.29
1,330.87
8,885.62
5,583.91

124.01
3,319.37
1,848.73
291.81
5,583.91

2,866.99
(239.60)
(660.58)

23,831.54
682.27
783.22

1,318.04

26,615.07

4198
498
10229

2018-19

19,130.84
1113.31
501.62

(520.18)
35312
(873.30)
4.86
4724
862.09
1,335.36

3,135.51
49.98
1,105.19
10,431.95
3,858.73

124.01
1,626.36
1,810.04

298.32
3,858.73

(10,259.46)
(258.04)
(1,037.77)

15,185.18
981.69
1,360.75
1,603.22
19,130.84

2880
802
10310

2019-20

13,191.06
(170.41)
(809.22)
(1,844.00)
210.98
(2,054.98)
9.53
4798

(681.16)

3,641.95
44,04
5,770.77
7 4l Loty
2,012.32

124.01
(390.16)

197524
303.23

2,012.32

3,229.20
(489.22)
(0.22)

10154.14
502.52
1374.70
159.70
13,191.06

1592
342
5978
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Financial Highlights

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Sales (Units)
Hino Chassis 1771 2962 3817 4310 2850 1639
Bus & Other Bodies 1547 461 501 478 822 345
Hilux Frame 4455 5360 6451 10328 10377 5897
No. of Employees 323 318 341 354 376 372
Investor Information
Financial Ratios
Gross profit / (loss) ratio 15.62% 15.27% 10.97% 1.40% 5.82% (1.29%)
Net profit / (loss) margin 8.49% 6.16% 4.98% 4.32% (4.56%) (15.58%)
Return on assets (after tax) 13.05% 11.52% M.13% 7.94% (6.11%) (21.73%)
Return on equity (after tax) 26.92% 25.96% 23.49% 21.72% (24.53%)  (120.24%)
Debt equity ratio* 0.05 0.06 0.06 0.06 0.08 0.8
Current Ratio 1.52 1.45 1.43 1.28 1.06 0.78
Quick Ratio 1.07 0.91 0.78 0.72 0.29 0.26
Interest cover ratio - - - - (1.77) (1.21)
Dividend payout ratio** 75.00% 100.00% 75.00% 75.01% 0.00% 0.00%
Dividend yield ratio** 7.63% 9.16% 4.23% 5.99% 0.00% 0.00%
Dividend cover ratio** 133% 100% 133% 133% 0.00% 0.00%
Other Ratios
Price earning ratio 9.83 10.92 17.72 12.52 (5.61) (1.84)
Earning / (loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)  1,567.43 2,183.74 1,962.63 2,569.97 739.05 (578.42)
EBITDA Margin to sales 12.40% 12.07% 8.73% 9.66% 3.86% (4.38%)
Total assets turnover ratio 1.54 1.87 2.23 1.84 134 1.39
Fixed assets turnover ratio 6.30 8.19 7.91 8.56 6.10 3.62
Return on capital employed 25.75% 24.58% 22.18% 20.58% (22.63%) (102.12%)
Inventory turnover ratio 4.77 6.69 6.64 5.77 2.79 2.26
Number of days inventory 77 55 55 63 131 162
Debtors turnover ratio 12.52 20.20 59.66 55.19 22.85 19.85
Number of days debtors 29 18 6 7 16 18
Creditors turnover ratio 2.65 3.34 394 3.39 290 3.95
Number of days creditors 138 109 93 108 126 93
Operating cycle (days) (32) (36) (31) (38) 21 87
Per Share Amounts (in Rupees)
Cash dividend** 64.91 89.78 67.73 69.52 - -
Breakup value with surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 32144 345.81 384.47 426.76 28712 137.82
Breakup value without surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 223.37 249.08 250.67 277.68 14115 (21.46)
Earning / (Loss) per share 86.54 89.78 90.31 92.69 (70.42) (165.71)
Share Price (High) 999.35 1,265.31 1,852.30 1,708.13 1,221.81 511.33
Share Price (Low) 397.36 836.59 880.21 970.00 394.20 2455
Share Price (Closing) 850.73 980.00 1,600.00 1,160.31 395.10 305
One US$ = Rupee as at period end 101.70 104.80 104.70 15.40 140.70 166.75
One JPY = Rupee as at period end 0.8459 0.9331 0.9421 1.0851 1.2702 1.5376

* Debt Equity Ratio takes into consideration non current liabilites.
** Based on final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors subsequent to the year ends.
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Vertical Analysis

Operating Results

Revenue from contracts with customers
Cost of sales

Gross (loss) / profit
Distribution cost
Administration expenses
Other income

Other expenses

(Loss) / profit from operations
Finance cost

(Loss) / profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) / profit after taxation

Financial Position

Property, plant and equipment
Other non current assets
Long-term investments
Long-term deposits
Long-term loans and advances
Employee benefit prepayment
Current assets

Total assets

Shareholders' equity
Deferred taxation

Other non-current liabilites
Short term debt

Other current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Cash Flows
Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Annual Report 2020

2019-20

2018-19

2017-18

(Rs. in million)

13,191.06
13,361.47
(170.41)
35101
355.67
82.89
14.92
(809.22)
1,034.78
(1,844.00)
210.98
(2,054.98)

3,638.79
316

7.23
25.06
.75
5,770.77
9,456.76

1,709.09
135.21
168.02
41524
3,329.20
9,456.76

3,229.20
(489.22)
(0.22)
2,739.76

%

100.00
101.29
(1.29)
266
2.70
0.63
om
(6.13)
7.84
(13.98)
1.60
(15.58)

38.48
0.03
0.00
0.08
0.26

0.12
61.03
100.00

18.07
1.43
178

43.52

35.20

100.00

17.86
(17.85)
(0.01)
100.00

(Rs. in million) %

19,130.84 100.00

18,017.53 94.18
1M3.31 5.82
359.60 1.88
378.83 198
147.64 0.77

20.90 om
501.62 2.62
1,021.80 534
(520.18) (2.72)
35312 1.85
(873.30) (4.57)
312774 21.89
777 0.05

- 0.00

8m 0.06
24.68 017
17.19 012
11,105.19 77.71

14,290.68 100.00

3,560.41 24.91
116.93 0.82
181.39 1.27

6,766.07 47.35
3,665.88 25.65

14,290.68 100.00

(10,259.46) 88.79
(258.04) 2.23
(1,037.77) 8.98

(11,55527)  100.00

(Rs. in million)

26,615.07
23,580.63
3,034.44
437.44
420.59
300.79
128.65
2,348.55
679.00
1,669.55
52017
1149.38

3,096.03
13.34
0.07

7.77
21.45
11,330.87
14,469.53

5,292.10
123.44
168.38

8,885.62
14,469.53

2,866.99
(239.60)
(660.58)
1,966.81

%

100.00
88.60
11.40
1.64
1.58
113
0.48
8.82
255
6.27
1.95
4.32

21.40
0.09
0.00
0.05

0.15
0.00
78.31
100.00

36.57
0.85
116
0.00
61.42
100.00

145.77

(1218)

(33.59)
100.00




Horizontal Analysis

Operating Results

Revenue from contracts with customers
Cost of sales

Gross (Loss) / profit
Distribution cost
Administration expenses
Other income

Other expenses

(Loss) / profit from operations
Finance cost

(Loss) / profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) / profit after taxation

Financial Position

Property, plant and equipment
Other non current assets
Long-term investments
Long-term deposits
Long-term loans and advances
Employee benefit prepayment
Current assets

Total assets

Shareholders' equity
Deferred taxation

Other non-current liabilites
Short term debt

Other current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Cash Flows

Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows used in financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

2019-20

2018-19

201718

(Rs. in million)

13,191.06
13,361.47
(170.41)
3510
355.67
82.89
14.92
(809.22)
1,034.78
(1,844.00)
210.98
(2,054.98)

3,638.79
316

7.23
25.06
.75
5,770.77
9,456.76

1,709.09
135.21
168.02
4,115.24
3,329.20
9,456.76

3,229.20
(489.22)
(0.22)
2,739.76

Variance vs Last
Year Increase
/ (Decrease)
%

(31.05)
(25.84)
(115.31)
(7.39)
(6.11)
(43.86)
989.05
(261.32)
1.27
(254.49)
(40.25)
(135.31)

16.34
(59.33)
0.00
(10.85)
154
(31.65)
(48.04)
(33.83)

(52.00)
15.63
(7.37)

(39.8)
(918)
(33.83)

131.48

(89.59)
99.98
123.71

(Rs. in million)

19,130.84
18,017.53
111331
37913
378.83
147.64
137
501.62
1,021.80
(520.18)
35312
(873.30)

312774
7.77

81

24.68
17.19
11,105.19
14,290.68

3,560.41
116.93
181.39

6,766.07
3,665.88
14,290.68

(10,259.46)
(258.04)
(1,037.77)
(11,555.27)

Variance vs Last
Year Increase
/ (Decrease)
%

(28.12)
(23.59)
(63.31)
(13.86)
(9.93)
(50.92)
(98.91)
(78.64)
50.49
(131.16)
(32.1)
(175.98)

1.02
(41.73)
(100.00)
438
15.05
0.00
(1.99)
(1.24)

(32.72)
(5.27)
7.73
0.00
(58.74)
(1.24)

(457.85)
(7.70)
(57.10)
(687.51)

Variance vs Last

(Rs. in million) Year Increase

26,615.07
23,580.63
3,034.44
44015
420.59
300.79
125.95
2,348.55
679.00
1,669.55
52017
1149.38

3,096.03
13.34
0.07

7.77
21.45
11,330.87
14,469.53

529210
123.44
168.38

8,885.62
14,469.53

2,866.99
(239.60)
(660.58)
1,966.81

/ (Decrease)
%

18.41
17.84
23.05
3.01
9.06
18.19
(3.65)
3217
746.38
(1.60)
(9.82)
263

9.63
(24.80)
0.00
12.27
(9.33)
(100.00)
57.63
4379

1.00
(2.24)
8.69
0.00
77.22
4379

388.47
11.09
40.49
348.14
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance)

Regulations, 2019 of Hinopak Motors Limited

For the Year Ended March 31, 2020

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

a) Male 06
b) Female o1
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
Composition Numbers Names
a) Independent Directors
- Male o1 Mr. Mushtaq Malik
- Female o1 Ms. Nagis Ali Akbar Ghaloo
b) NonExecutive Directors 03 Mr. Muhammad Aslam Sanjrani
Mr. Shuichi Kaneko
Mr. Hitoshi Otomo
c) Executive Directors 02 Mr. Yoshihiko Nanami
Mr. Shigeru Tsuchiya

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company;

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars
of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the
company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act
and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of the Board;

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;
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9. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:
a. Directors
. Yoshihiko Nanami

. Shigeru Tsuchiya

b. Executives

. Fahim Aijaz Sabzwari CFO & Vice President Finance, IT, HR & Admin

. Naushad Riaz Vice President Production Operations & Business Planning
. Syed Samad Siraj General Manager BMD, QAD, SCD, MMP

. Mehmood Ahmed Khan General Manager National Sales

. Adil Mohiuddin Shah General Manager Total Support

. Ahsan Waseem Akhtar General Manager HR & Admin

. Muhammad Zahid Hasan General Manager Finance & IT

. Abdul Basit Asst. General Manager Business Planning & Cost Control

. Syed Junaid Ali Company Secretary & Asst. General Manager Corporate &

Financial Operations

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee
o Mushtaq Malik - Chairman
« Nargis Ali Akbar Ghaloo
o  Shuichi Kaneko
o Hitoshi Otomo

b) HR and Remuneration Committee
o Mushtaq Malik - Chairman
» Yoshihiko Nanami
» Shigeru Tsuchiya
o Shuichi Kaneko
e Hitoshi Otomo

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance;
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14. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended
March 31, 2020
HR and Remuneration Committee One meeting during the financial year ended March 31, 2020

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who is considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

b )

MUHAMMAD ASLAM SANJRANI YOSHIHIKO NANAMI
CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
July 27, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HINOPAK MOTORS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Hinopak Motors Limited (the Company) for the year ended March 31, 2020 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company'’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act,
2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval
of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.
We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of
related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or
not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with

the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2020.

g

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Dated: August 04,2020

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <www.pwc.com/pk>

= KARACH| « LAHORE » ISLAMABAD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Hinopak Motors Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Hinopak Motors Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in
the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at March 31, 2020 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A. F, FERGUSON & C0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building Na. 1-C, LI Chundrigar Road, P.0. Box 4716, Karachi-7qo00, Pakistan
Tel: +02 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +02 (21) 32415007/32427038/ 32424740, <t piue.com,/pk>

= KARACGHI =LAHORE = ISLAMABAD
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Following is the key audit matter:

(i)

Impact of COVID-19
(Refer notes 1 & 39)

Due to COVID-19 pandemic and resulting
lockdown in the country since March 2020,
the business activities in the country have
been adversely affected. In March 2020
Company’s factory and offices were
closed. Further, due to this closure, various
year-end activities relating to financial
closing were impacted. This situation
affected the overall audit strategy. In
relation to the accounting and reporting
obligations, management assessed the
following significant areas for incorporating
any potential impact of COVID-19 in the
financial statements:

expected credit losses (ECL) under
IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’;

the impairment of tangible and
intangible assets under IAS 36,
‘Impairment of assets’;

the net realisable value (NRV) of
inventory under IAS 2, 'Inventories';

provisions and contingent liabilities
under IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’,
including onerous contracts; and

going concern assumption used for the
preparation of the financial statements.

The COVID-19 pandemic is a significant
development during the year having the
most significant impact on audit strategy
and its execution and involved assessment
of significant management judgements in
the preparation of financial statements.
Therefore, we considered it to be a key
audit matter.

A'F FERGUSON&CO

Our audit procedures amongst others
included the following:

e Obtained an overall understanding of
the changes in financial reporting
process and underlying controls in
order to determine the appropriate
audit strategy;

Utilised technology for communication
and evidence gathering;

Utilised audit software for review and
supervision of audit work;

Obtained management's plan
regarding execution of physical
inventory check at a date subsequent
to the year-end;

Observed physical inventory check
carried out by management
subsequent to year-end and tested the
roll-back of the inventory quantities
prepared by management on a sample
basis;

For information/record provided by
management in scanned form, the
original record was  checked
subsequently when the lockdown was
relaxed;

For confirmation received through
email, the authenticity of the
confirmations was ensured by
performing alternate procedure such
as making telephone calls to
confirming parties;

Assessed the reasonableness of
forward-looking factors under the
COVID-19  situation used by
management in preparing ECL model;

Evaluated whether any impairment
indicators exist that could trigger
impairment for tangible and intangible
assets;

Obtained the computation of NRV and
checked its reasonableness;
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Evaluated management's assessment
as to whether any provisions were
required to be recorded as a result of
COVID-19;

Evaluated management's going
concern assessment by reviewing the
approved budget/future cash flow
forecast and management plans and
assessed whether going concern
assumption is appropriate;

Impact of COVID-19
(Refer notes 1 & 39) — contd...

Obtained letter of financial support
from the Parent; and

Reviewed the adequacy of the
disclosures made by the Company
under applicable accounting and
reporting standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account
and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980),
was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established
under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Syed Fahim ul Hasan.

Affonp— b &
/

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: August 04, 2020
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At March 31, 2020

‘ Statement of Financial Position

Note 2020 2019
Rupees '000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 3,638,786 3,127,741
Intangibles 6 3,163 7,769
Long-term investments 7 - -
Long-term loans and advances 8 25,063 24,675
Long-term deposits 7,227 8,112
Employee benefit prepayment 18 11,750 17,190
3,685,989 3,185,487
Current assets
Inventories 9 3,837,972 8,038,091
Trade debts - net 10 369,410 959,682
Loans and advances 11 17,999 22,545
Trade deposits and prepayments 12 34,486 89,789
Refunds due from the government - sales tax 13 518,540 1,112,542
Other receivables 14 14,694 -
Taxation - payments less provision 839,063 832,857
Cash and bank balances 15 138,607 49,683
5,770,771 11,105,189
Total assets 9,456,760 14,290,676
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 16 124,006 124,006
Capital Reserve
Revaluation surplus on land and building 1,975,241 1,810,044
Revenue Reserves
General Reserve 291,000 291,000
Unappropriated (loss) / profit (681,159) 1,335,362
1,709,088 3,560,412
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation 17 135,209 116,926
Employee benefit obligations 18 168,020 181,388
303,229 298,314
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 3,315,900 3,652,352
Short-term borrowings - secured 20 4,115,238 6,766,074
Unclaimed dividend 13,305 13,524
7,444,443 10,431,950
Total liabilities 7,747,672 10,730,264
Contingency and commitments 21
Total equity and liabilities 9,456,760 14,290,676

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an intearal part of these financial statements.

b )

Dirgctor Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 2020 2019
Rupees '000
Revenue from contracts with customers 22 13,191,060 19,130,839
Cost of sales 23 (13,361,471) (18,017,525)
Gross (loss) / profit (170,411) 1,113,314
Distribution cost 23 (351,114) (359,595)
Administrative expenses 23 (355,666) (378,831)
Other income 24 82,889 147,640
Other expenses 25 - (1,372)
Impairment loss on trade debts and deposits (14,917) (19,533)
(Loss) / profit from operations (809,219) 501,623
Finance cost 26 (1,034,779) (1,021,797)
Loss before income tax (1,843,998) (520,174)
Income tax expense 27 (210,978) (353,123)
Loss after income tax (2,054,976) (873,297)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss
Loss on remeasurements of post employment
benefit obligations 18 (13,417) (6,743)
Impact of deferred tax 3,891 1,888
(9,526) (4,855)
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings 233,933 -
Impact of deferred tax (16,706) -
217,227 -
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 207,701 (4,855)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,847,275) (878,152)
Loss per share - basic 28 Rs (165.71) Rs (70.42)

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

h b By

Director Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Share R R Capital Total
Capital evenue Reserves Reserve
General Unappro- Revaluation
priated Surplus
profit /
(loss)
< Rupees "'000 >
Balance at April 1, 2018 124,006 291,000 3,028,366 1,848,727 5,292,099
Final dividend for the year ended
March 31, 2018 @ Rs. 69.52 per share - - (862,087) - (862,087)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net of deferred tax - - 47,235 (38,683) 8,552
Total comprehensive loss for the
year ended March 31, 2019
- Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019 - - (873,297) - (873,297)
- Other comprehensive loss for the year
ended March 31, 2019 - - (4,855) - (4,855)
- - (878,152) - (878,152)
Balance at March 31, 2019 124,006 291,000 1,335,362 1,810,044 3,560,412
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net of deferred tax - - 47,981 (52,030) (4,049)
Total comprehensive loss for the
year ended March 31, 2020
- Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 - - (2,054,976) - (2,054,976)
- Other comprehensive income for the year
ended March 31, 2020 - - (9,526) 217,227 207,701
- - (2,064,502) 217,227 (1,847,275)
Balance at March 31, 2020 124,006 291,000 (681,159) 1,975,241 1,709,088
The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
M b )
Dirgctor Chief Executive Officer
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Statement Of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupees '000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from / (utilised in) operations 29 4,359,440 (9,454,949)
Mark-up paid on short-term borrowings (840,436) (74,440)
Return on savings accounts and deposits 7,766 104,516
Income taxes paid (215,765) (763,624)
Employee benefits paid (82,303) (67,397)
Decrease / (increase) in long-term deposits 885 (342)
Increase in long-term loans and advances (388) (3,223)
Net cash generated from / (utilised in) operating activities 3,229,199 (10,259,459)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (529,575) (271,189)
Purchase of intangible assets - (4,082)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 40,355 17,234
Net cash utilised in investing activities (489,220) (258,037)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (219) (1,037,774)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,739,760 (11,555,270)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (6,716,391) 4,838,879
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 30 (3,976,631) (6,716,391)

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

% - b7 %) b

Director Chief Executive Officer
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A Notes to and Forming Part of the

Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Hinopak Motors Limited (the Company) is incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited
Company and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company's principal activity is the assembly, progressive manufacturing and sale
of Hino buses and trucks. The registered office of the Company is located at D-2,
S.L.T.E., Manghopir Road, Karachi.

The Company is a subsidiary of Hino Motors Limited, Japan (HML) and the ultimate
parent of the Company is Toyota Motors Corporation, Japan (TMC).

The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

During the year, the Company has incurred a loss after tax amounting to Rs. 2.06
billion (March 31, 2019: Rs. 873.30 million). As at March 31, 2020, the Company has
accumulated losses of Rs. 681.16 million (March 31, 2019: accumulated profits of
Rs. 1.34 billion). The current liabilities of the Company exceed its current assets by
Rs. 1.67 bilion (March 31, 2019: current assets exceeded current liabilities by
Rs. 673.24 million). However, based on management plans to improve Company's
financial performance in future years which include revision in sales prices of
Company's products and cost curtailment together with the availability of financial
support from the Parent, management believes that the Company will be able to meet
its obligations in the normal course and continue to operate in future.

The management plans for generating sufficient cashflows have been made
considering the future sales volume, pricing decisions, cost reduction strategies,
exchange rate impact, availability of funds through committed credit lines among other
things.

Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below:

21 Basis of preparation
21.1  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the

Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from
the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017 have been followed.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

21.2 Changes in accounting standards and interpretations

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved
accounting standards that became effective during the year
and are relevant

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments', this standard replaces the guidance in IAS 39. It
includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets
and liabilities; it also includes an expected credit loss model that replaces the
current incurred loss impairment model.

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers', this standard replaces the
previous revenue standards: IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts,
and the related interpretations on revenue recognition. IFRS 15 introduces a
single five-step model for revenue recognition and establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognition of revenue from contracts with customers based on a
core principle that an entity should recognise revenue when the control of goods
or services has been transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, this standard replaces the previous lease standard: IAS 17
'Leases'. It will result in almost all leases being recognised on the statement of
financial position, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and
a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short
term and low value leases.

The impact of changes laid down by these standards are detailed in note 4.

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its
notification dated July 29, 2019 brought certain alterations in fourth schedule to
the Companies Act, 2017 with regard to preparation and presentation of financial
statements. These alterations resulted in elimination of certain disclosures in the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Hinopak Motors Limited | 36




Notes to and Forming Part of the

Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

b) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved
accounting standards that are effective but not relevant

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019 are considered not to
be relevant for the Company's financial statements and hence have not been
detailed here.

c) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved
accounting standards that are relevant but not effective

The new standards, certain amendments and interpretations that are mandatory
for accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2019 are considered not to
be relevant for the Company's financial statements and hence have not been
detailed here.

2.2 Overall valuation policy

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

2.3 Property, plant and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and impairment
loss, if any, except land and buildings which are stated at revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, and capital work-in-progress
which is stated at cost.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the straight line
method, whereby the depreciable amount of an asset is written off over its
estimated useful life. The revalued amount of leasehold land and building is amortised
/ depreciated equally over the remaining life from the date of revaluation. Depreciation
is charged on additions from the month the asset is available for use and on disposals
upto the month preceding the month of disposal.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land and buildings are
recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in
shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or
loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first
recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year,
the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the
asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost, net
of tax, is reclassified from the revaluation surplus on land and building to retained
earnings.

Gain or loss on disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment is included in
statement of profit or loss.
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Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

2.4 Intangibles - computer softwares

Computer software licenses acquired by the Company are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Cost represents the cost incurred to acquire the software
licenses and bring them to use. The cost of computer software is amortised over the
estimated useful life i.e. 2 to 3 years.

Costs associated with maintaining computer softwares are charged to statement of
profit or loss.

2.5 Impairment

The carrying values of non-current assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If
any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their
recoverable amount.

2.6 Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Policy effective for accounting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019.
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified at initial recognition and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL). The measurement basis is determined by reference to
both the business model for managing the financial asset and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset.

a) Amortised cost - A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both
of the following conditions and is not designated as a FVTPL;

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding;
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b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - A financial asset is

measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as a FVTPL,;

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding; and

c) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - Financial assets, that are not
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
on initial recognition, are classified as FVTPL.

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and
impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at FVTOCI are initially and subsequently measured at fair
value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income / (loss).

Financial assets carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction
costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the statement of profit or
loss and ather comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a financial
asset, in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables that do
not constitute a financing transaction. Expected credit losses (ECLs) are a probability
weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of
all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and cash flows that the Company expects to receive).
Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to 12 months’ ECLs i.e. ECLs that result
from default event that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the

Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off
the recognised amounts and intends either, to settle on a net basis or, to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Transaction costs

When a financial asset or financial liability is not measured at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue are added to or deducted
from the initial fair value. For financial assets, such costs are added to the amount
originally recognised. For financial liabilities, such costs are deducted from the amount
originally recognised. This applies to all financial instruments not carried at FVTPL,
including instruments carried at FVTOCI. For debt instruments, the transaction costs
are recognised as part of interest income using the effective interest method.

For financial instruments that are measured at FVTPL, transaction costs are not
added to or deducted from the initial fair value, but these are immediately recognised
in profit or loss on initial recognition.

Transaction costs expected to be incurred on a financial instrument's transfer or
disposal are not included in the financial instrument's measurement.

Financial instruments policy upto March 31, 2019:
The investments of the Company were classified into the following categories:
i)  Held to maturity

These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
with the Company having positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. These are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cost, and subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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i) At fair value through profit or loss - held for trading

These are investments designated at fair value through statement of profit or loss
at inception. Investments in this category are classified as current assets if they
are expected to be realised within twelve months of the statement of financial
position's date.

Investments at fair value through statement of profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of
profit or loss. These are subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value are taken to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

i)  Available for sale

These represent non-derivative investments that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any other category. They are included as non-current
assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose off the
investments within twelve months of the statement of financial position's date.

Available for sale investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs and are subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in the fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position's date whether there is
objective evidence that an investment is impaired. Impairment loss on all investments
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Whereas, reversal of impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income - for available for sale investments.

2.7 Taxation
i Current

Charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of
taxation after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, and
taxes paid under the final tax regime.

ii. Deferred

The Company accounts for deferred taxation using the liability method on
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liability is
recognised for taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax
credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of
profit or loss except for deferred tax arising on surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets and on change in fair value of investments categorised as fair value
through other comprehensive income which is charged to the surplus on
revaluation and fair value reserve respectively.
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Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

2.8 Inventories

These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by first-
in first-out method except for materials for fabrication of bus bodies, consumable
stores, locally manufactured parts, spares for sale and stock in transit.

Cost of material for fabrication of bus bodies, consumable stores, locally manufactured
parts and spares for sale is determined on moving average method. Cost of stock in
transit comprises of invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Cost of work in process and finished goods include direct material, labour and
appropriate portion of manufacturing expenses.

Net realisable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of the
product in the ordinary course of business less cost of completion and estimated costs
necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.

Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at cost determined on moving average basis
less provision for slow moving and obsolete stores and spares. Items in transit are
valued at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

29 Trade debts

Trade debts are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional, unless they contain significant financing components when they are
recognised at fair value. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less loss allowance. Refer note 2.6 for a description of the
Company’s impairment policies.

210 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purposes of cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash, cheques in hand, balances
with banks on current, savings and deposit accounts and short term borrowings under
mark-up arrangements.

2.1 Leases

Policy effective for accounting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019: leases are
recognised as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities at the date on
which leased assets are available for use by the Company except for leases of short
term or low value.

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease based on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option or not exercise a
termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only
included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments over
the period of lease term and that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using interest rate implicit in the lease or the Company's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentive receivable, variable
lease payment that are based on an index or a rate which are initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement date, amounts expected to be payable by
the Company under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.
The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term
only when the Company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. The lease liability is also remeasured to reflect any
reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payment.

The lease liability is remeasured when the Company reassesses the reasonable
certainty of exercising the extension or termination option upon occurrence of either a
significant event or a significant change in circumstances, or when there is a change in
assessment of an option to purchase underlying asset, or when there is a change in
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or when there is a
change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payment. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

When there is a change in scope of a lease, or the consideration for a lease, that was
not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease, it is accounted for as a lease
modification. The lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if
modification increases the scope of lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets and the consideration for lease increases by an amount that is
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope adjusted to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contracts, if any. When the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, the lease liability is remeasured and
corresponding adjustment is made to right-of-use asset.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at an amount equal to the initial
measurement of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the costs
to be incurred to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which the asset is located.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost model. The right-of-use asset
is depreciated on a straight line method over the lease term as this method most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The
right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

As detailed in note 4, the Company has elected to apply the practical expedient of not
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

212 Employee benefits - retirement benefits
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension or gratuity that an employee will
receive on or after retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age,
years of service and compensation. The liability recognised in the statement of
financial position in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds or
the market rates on government bond. These are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related obligation.

The Company operates approved funded gratuity and pension schemes for all its
permanent employees. The schemes define the amounts of benefit that an employee
will receive on or after retirement subject to a minimum qualifying period of service
under the schemes.

Contribution to pension fund is made by both, the Company based on actuarial
recommendation and by employees at 2% and 3% of the basic monthly salary in case
of management and non-management staff respectively.

The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income
in the periods in which they occur.

Past service costs are immediately recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Company also operates an approved
contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees to which equal monthly
contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the
rate of 10% of basic salary.
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213 Compensated absences

The Company accounts for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed
balance of leave in the period in which the leave is earned.

214 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

215 Borrowings and their costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are
incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if
any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

216 Warranty obligations

The Company recognises the estimated liability, on an accrual basis, to repair or
replace products under warranty at the statement of financial position's date, and
recognises the estimated product warranty costs in the statement of profit or loss
when the sale is recognised.

217 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid for goods and services, whether or not billed to the Company.

2.18 Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control over the goods
transfers to the customer that is when the customer has the ability to control the use of
the transferred goods provided and generally derive their remaining benefits and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the product. It
is measured at the transaction price which the Company expects to be entitled to and
represents the amount of goods supplied, after netting of discounts, returns and value
added taxes.

Commission on handling Complete Built Up (CBU) vehicles and spare parts is
recognised on accrual basis.

Return on bank deposits and short term investments is recognised on accrual basis.

219 Research and development cost

Research and development cost except to the extent that an intangible asset is
recognised, is charged in the year in which it is incurred. Development costs previously
charged to income are not recognised as an asset in the subsequent period.
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2.20 Foreign currency transaction and translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pak Rupee using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
statement of financial position's date. Exchange gains and losses are taken to
statement of profit or loss.

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders is recognised as liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividend is approved.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

31 The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below:

311 Income tax

In making the estimates for income taxes, the Company takes into account the current
income tax law and decisions taken by appellate authorities on certain issues in the
past. There may be various matters where the Company's view differs with the view
taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company
considers that its view on items of a material nature is in accordance with the law.

3.1.2 Defined benefit plans

The Company has made certain actuarial assumptions as disclosed in note 18 to the
financial statements for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations and
fair value of plan assets, based on actuarial advice.

313 Provisions

Provisions are considered, among others, for legal matters, disputed indirect taxes
and warranty obligations where a legal or constructive obligation exists at the
statement of financial position's date and reliable estimate can be made of the likely
outcome. The nature of these costs is such that judgement is involved in estimating
the timing and amount of cash flows.

3.1.4  Fair valuation of land and buildings

Land and buildings are revalued by using the methodology as mentioned in note 5.2.

3.2 No critical judgement has been used in applying the accounting policies.
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4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i) IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting. The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from April 01, 2019
resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. The new accounting policies are set out in
note 2.6 above. In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 9,
corresponding figures have not been restated and any adjustment to carrying
amount of financial assets and liabilities were recognised in the opening retained
earnings as of the transition date.

Classifications and remeasurement

On April 01, 2019 (the date of initial application of IFRS 9), the Company’s
management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets
held by the Company and has classified its financial instruments into the
appropriate IFRS 9 categories. The main effects resulting from this
reclassifications and adjustments are as follows:

Financial assets Note Carryingamount Reclassification ~ Remeasurement Carrying amount
- April 01, 2019 asreported under  due to IFRS -9 allowance: ECL asreported under
IAS 39 IFRS 9
April 01, 2019 April 01, 2019
4 (Rupees '000) >
Long term investment a -
Loans and advances 37,897 - - 37,897
Deposits 76,024 - - 76,024
Trade debts b,c 959,682 - - 959,682
Cash and bank balances 49,683 - - 49,683
1,123,286 - - 1,123,286

(a) Investments in Arabian Sea Country Club Limited and Automotive Testing &
Training Centre (Private) Limited are unlisted equity shares carried at cost
less impairment were reclassified from available-for-sale to financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) as it is not held
for trading.
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(b) IFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model in IAS 39 with an 'expected credit
loss' (ECL) model. The Company has determined that the application of
IFRS 9 impairment requirements at April 01, 2019 results in no additional
allowance for trade receivables.

(c) the Company has adopted consequential amendments to IAS 1
'Presentation of Financial Statements' which require impairment of financial
assets to be presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

The table below explains the original classification categories under IAS 39
and the new classification categories under IFRS 9 for each of the
Company's financial assets and liabilities as at April 01, 2019.

Original classification New classification - New
Original ,
under IAS 39 under amount  caM¥ing
IFRS 9 amount
under under
IAS 39 IFRS 9
(Rupees '000)
Financial assets
Long term investment Available for sale Fair value through other
comprehensive income - .
Loans and advances Loans and receivables Amortised cost 37,897 37,897
Deposits Loans and receivables Amortised cost 76,024 76,024
Trade debts Loans and receivables Amortised cost 959,682 959,682
Other receivable Loans and receivables Amortised cost - -
Cash and bank balances Loans and receivables Amortised cost 49,683 49,683
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables Amortised cost Amortised cost 1,837,974 1,837,974
Unclaimed dividend Amortised cost Amortised cost 13,524 13,524
Short term borrowings Amortised cost Amortised cost 6,766,074 6,766,074

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 - 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
from April 01, 2019. IFRS 15 replaced IAS 18 - Revenue, IAS 11 - Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations. IFRS 15 allows for two methods of
adoption:

- retrospectively to each prior period presented with or without practical
expedients, or

- retrospectively with cumulative effect of adoption as an adjustment to
opening accumulated loss in the period of adoption.

The Company has evaluated the impact of the new revenue standard and has

concluded that there is no significant adjustment that needs to be given effect in
thece finanrial statements
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iii) IFRS 16 - Leases

The Company has adopted IFRS 16, 'Leases' on April 01, 2019 which replaces
existing guidance on accounting for leases, including IAS 17 'Leases', IFRIC 4
'Determining whether an arrangement contains a Lease', SIC-15 'Operating
Leases - Incentive' and SIC-27 'Evaluating the substance of transactions
involving the legal form of a Lease'. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on balance
sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use
asset representing its right-of-use of the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligations to make lease payments. The accounting polices
relating to Company' right of use asset and lease liability are disclosed in
note 2.11.

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Company has used the following
practical expedients permitted by the standard:

- By accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than
12 months as at April 01, 2019 as short-term leases; and

- By electing not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the
transition date, the Company relied on its arrangement made applying IAS
17 and interpretation for determining whether an arrangement contains a
Lease.

The Company has evaluated the impact of the new standard and has concluded
that there is no impact that needs to be given effect in these financial statements.

Note 2020 2019
Rupees 000
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets 5.1 3,579,760 3,069,788
Capital work-in-progress 5.7 59,026 57,953

3,638,786 3,127,741
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5.1 Operating assets

Leasehold Buildings Building Plantand Furniture Vehicles Electrical Office and Total
land on on machinery and installations other
(Revalued -  Freehold  joag0nold  freehold fittings equipments
note 5.2) land land land
(Revalued -
note 5.2)
B Rupees 000
Year ended
March 31, 2020
Opening net book value (NBV) 1,523,598 108,082 758,270 - 362,240 9,259 196,962 40,690 70,687 3,069,788
Revaluation 176,325 - 57,608 - - - - - - 233,933
Additions - - - 283,979 55,360 3,528 127,307 24,523 33,805 528,502
Disposals - at NEV - - - - (101) - (26,041) * - (128) (26,270)
Depreciation / amortisation
charge for the year (31.873) - (35,790) (1,183) (76,674) (3,820} (35,315) (13,346) (27,992) (226,193)
Closing net book value 1,667,950 108,082 780,088 282 796 340,825 8,867 262,913 51,867 76,372 3,579,760
At March 31, 2020
Caost or revalued amount 1,731,225 108,082 851,073 283,979 1,024,670 32,725 417,630 160,503 256,907 4,866,794
Accumulated impairment - - - - (2,735) - - - (100) (2,835)
Accumulated depreciation /
amortisation (63,275) - (70,985) (1,183} (681,110) (23,858) (154,717) (108,636) (180,435) (1,284,199)
Net book value 1,667,950 108,082 780,088 282,796 340,825 8,867 262,913 51,867 76,372 3,579,760
Year ended
March 31, 2019
Opening net book value (NBV) 1,554,800 - 789,275 - 348,894 12,57 189,226 21,351 80,800 2,997,017
Additions - 108,082 4,190 - 94,067 646 57,027 28,973 19,267 312,252
Disposals - at NBV - - - - (421) - (11,205) - (75) (11,701)
Depreciation/amortisation (31,302) - (35,195) - (80,300) (3958)  (38,086) (9,634) (20,308)  (227,780)
charge for the year
Closing net book value 1,523,598 108,082 758,270 - 362,240 9,259 196,962 40,690 70,687 3,060,788
At March 31, 2019
Cost or revalued amount 1,554,900 108,082 793,465 - 977,428 29,197 354,725 137,751 231,564 4,187,112
Accumulated impairment - - - - (2,735) - - - (100) (2,835)
Accumulated depreciation /
amortisation (31,302) - (35,195) - (612,453) (19,938) (157,763) (97,061) (160,777)  (1,114,488)
Net book value 1,623,598 108,082 758,270 - 362,240 9,259 196,962 40,690 70,687 3,060,788
Useful life (years) T6to 79 NIA 40 40 2to 10 2to 10 4105 5 3to7

* Assets disposed off having nil net book value.

5.2 Company’s two plots of land located at D-2 and D-136, S.I.T.E. Karachi and one plot of land
located at Muzzafargarh Road, Multan, measuring 10.61 acres, 6 acres and 1.77 acres
respectively and buildings on Karachi land were revalued by an independent valuer - M/s
Sadruddin Associates (Private) Limited on March 31, 2020 on the basis of present market values
for similar-sized plots in the vicinity for land and depreciated values of similar type of buildings
based on present cost of construction (level 2). However, the building on Multan land was not
revalued as it was capitalised during the year and it was assessed that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from fair value on March 31, 2020.
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The different levels have been defined in IFRS 13 for fair value hierarchy as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1);

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from
prices) (level 2); and

- Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data
(i.e. unobservable inputs e.g. estimated future cash flows) (level 3).

Had there been no revaluation, the net book values of lands and buildings on leasehold
lands as at March 31, 2020 would have been Rs. 112.86 million (2019: Rs. 113.2
million) and Rs. 339.38 million (2019: Rs. 353.33 million) respectively.

5.3 Forced sales value of lands and buildings on leasehold lands as estimated by valuer is
Rs. 1,420.96 million (2019: Rs. 1,315.24 million) and Rs. 624.07 million
(2019: Rs. 620.34 million) respectively.

54 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company is as

follows:
Location Usage of Total Area Covered
immovable (in acres) Area
property (in sq.ft)
a) D-2, S.I.T.E. Manghopir Road, Chassis 10.61 373,678
Karachi. assembling facility
b) D-136, S.I.T.E. Manghopir Road, Body
Karachi. manufacturing 6 336,409
facility
c) Kayan Pur, Tehsil Multan, Union 38 facility 1.77 20,273
Council No. 73, Near Multan Bypass,
Multan.

5.5 During the year, the Company has capitalised borrowing costs amounting to
Rs. 15.51 million (March 31, 2019: Nil) on its operating assets. Borrowing costs were
capitalised at the current year's weighted average rate of its general borrowings of
13.53% per annum.

5.6 The details of operating assets disposed of, having net book value in excess of
Rs. 500,000 have been disclosed in note 38.

5.7 Capital work-in-progress - at cost

2020 2019
Freehold Building Plant and Total Freehold Buildings Plantand Total
Land machinery Land Machinery
< Rupees 000 >
Balance as at
April 1 - 36,588 21,365 57,953 86,217 - 12,799 99,016
Additions during
the year - 330,028 47,299 377,327 21,865 36,588 21,453 79,906
Transfers to operating
assets - (355,993)  (20,261) (376,254)  (108,082) - (12,887) (120,969)
Total - 10,623 48,403 59,026 - 36,588 21,365 57,953
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6. INTANGIBLES - Computer Softwares
2020 2019
Rupees 000
Opening balance
Cost 73,766 69,684
Accumulated amortisation (65,997) (56,349)
Net book value 7,769 13,335
Year ended March 31
Opening net book value 7,769 13,335
Additions - 4,082
Amortisation (4,606) (9,648)
Closing net book value 3,163 7,769
Closing balance
Cost 73,766 73,766
Accumulated amortisation (70,603) (65,997)
Net book value 3,163 7,769

7. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Fair value through other comprehensive income

Arabian Sea Country Club Limited
[500,000 (2019: 500,000) Unquoted ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each, representing 6.45
percent (2019: 6.45 percent) of equity] - -

Automotive Testing & Training Centre
(Private) Limited
[50,000 (2019: 50,000) Unquoted ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each, representing 2.77
percent (2019: 2.77 percent) of equity] - -

The above investments were reassessed by the management on April 01, 2019 and
March 31, 2020 based on the available information and it was concluded that the fair
value does not differ materially from carrying amount on April 01, 2019 and
March 31, 2020.

2020 2019
Rupees 000
8. LONG-TERM LOANS AND
ADVANCES - considered good
Loans and advances to employees 41,466 37,897
Less: Recoverable within one year - note 11 (16,403) (13,222)
25,063 24,675
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8.1 The loans and advances are extended to employees under their terms of employment

on interest free basis.

Loans under the schemes have been extended to facilitate purchase / construction of
house and are repayable over a period of eight to nine years. The loan for purchase /
construction of house is secured against employees' retirement fund balances.

Advances to employees are for house rent assistance and these are repayable upto a
period of seven years. These are secured against employees' retirement fund

balances.

8.2 Long term loans and advances include loan provided to key management personnel

amounting to Rs 7.06 million (2019: Rs. 9.03 million).

9. INVENTORIES

Stores and spares

Loose tools

Less: Provision for obsolescence

Raw materials and components - note 9.1
[including in transit Rs. 295.6 million
(2019: Rs. 283.7 million)]

Less: Provision for obsolescence

Work-in-process

Finished goods

Less: Provision for obsolescence

Trading stock - Spare parts
[including in transit Rs. 36.5 million
(2019: Rs. 13.6 million)]

Less: Provision for obsolescence
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2020 2019
Rupees 000
9,325 13,404
3,535 5,835
12,860 19,239
(1,379) (499)
11,481 18,740
3,076,315 7,077,811
(11,880) (26,603)
3,064,435 7,051,208
30,413 15,532
590,773 723,362
- (419)
590,773 722,943
167,041 251,597
(26,171) (21,929)
140,870 229,668
3,837,972 8,038,091
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9.1 Raw materials include stocks held with suppliers amounting to Rs. 157 million
(2019: Rs. 225 million).
9.2 As at March 31, 2020, raw materials and components costing Rs. 1,448.63 million

(2019: Rs. 99.57 million) have been written down by Rs. 99.73 million
(2019: Rs. 8.69 million) and finished products costing Rs. 144.17 million
(2019: Rs. 25.38 million) by Rs. 24.81 million (2019: Rs. 4.75 million) to arrive at the net
realisable value.

9.3 During the year, management has reassessed the method for determining provision for
obsolescence of raw material and stores, spares and loose tools related to chassis
assembly process to better reflect the pattern in which the economic benefits of these
assets are consumed. Had the reassessment been not made, the provision for
obsolescence and loss before income tax for the year would have been higher by
Rs. 17.84 million and carrying value of these items would have been lower by the same

amount.
2020 2019
Rupees '000
10. TRADE DEBTS - NET
Considered good - unsecured
Related party - note 10.2
Indus Motor Company Limited 107,668 78,407
Others - note 10.3 261,742 881,275
369,410 959,682
Considered doubtful
Others 54,742 36,948
424,152 996,630
Less: Provision for doubtful debts - note 10.4 (54,742) (36,948)
369,410 959,682
10.1 As at March 31, the age analysis of trade debts is as follows:
2020 2019
Rupees '000
Not yet due 260,211 901,819
Past due
- Up to 3 months * 45,670 2,157
- 3 to 6 months 6,504 72,740
- 6 to 12 months 44,519 466
- More than one year 67,248 19,448
163,941 94,811
424,152 996,630

* This includes amount of Rs. 38.95 million (2019 : Nil) from related party and the remaining balance from
related party is not due on reporting date.

10.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month
during the year was Rs. 107.8 million (2019: Rs. 110.08 million).
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These include amount receivable from government institutions amounting to
Rs. 203.12 million (2019: Rs. 668.15 million).

2020 2019
Rupees 000
Balance at beginning of the year 36,948 21,956
Charge during the year - net 17,794 14,992
Balance at end of the year 54,742 36,948
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Current maturity of long term loans and
advances to employees 16,403 13,222
Advances to:
- employees 496 687
- suppliers 8,370 15,906
8,866 16,593
25,269 29,815
Provision for doubtful advances to suppliers (7,270) (7,270)
17,999 22,545

The maximum aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month
during the year was Rs. 9.62 million (2019: Rs. 7.46 million).

2020 2019
Rupees ’000
TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Trade deposits 31,304 80,959
Provision for doubtful deposits - note 12.1 (10,170) (13,047)
21,134 67,912
Prepayments 13,352 21,877
34,486 89,789
Balance at beginning of the year 13,047 8,506
(Reversal) / charge during the year (2,877) 4,541
Balance at end of the year 10,170 13,047
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2020 2019
Rupees '000
13. REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT -
SALES TAX

Sales tax refundable - note 13.1 571,459 1,165,461

Custom duty and excise duty refundable 2,807 2,807
574,266 1,168,268

Less: Provision for doubtful refunds (55,726) (55,726)

518,540 1,112,542

13.1 This includes sales tax refundable of Rs. 47.14 million (2019: Rs. 47.14 million), net of
provisional refunds of Rs. 519.05 million (2019: Rs. 519.05 million) received against
bank guarantees and undertakings, the recovery of which is dependent upon fulfilment
of the requirements of standing order no. 1 of 2010 issued by the Federal Board of
Revenue and verification of related sales tax records. The Company is in the process of
complying with the regulatory requirements.

14. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivable includes Rs. 9.01 million (2019: Nil) from Toyota Tsusho Corporation,
Japan, a related party of the Company against indenting commission. The maximum
aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month during the year
was Rs. 29.98 million (2019: Rs. 0.92 million).

2020 2019
Rupees '000
15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Balances with banks:
- on current accounts 20,253 13,872
- on PLS savings accounts - note 15.1 118,254 22,966
Cheques in hand - 12,793
Cash in hand 100 52
138,607 49,683

15.1 At March 31, 2020, the average rate of mark-up on savings accounts was 10.8% per
annum (2019: 8.31% per annum).

15.2 Cash and bank balances includes Rs. 6.32 million (2019: Nil) in bank accounts of
JS Bank Limited a related party of the Company. The maximum aggregate amount at
the end of any month during the year was Rs. 6.32 million (2019: Nil).
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2020 2019
Rupees '000
16 SHARE CAPITAL
16.1 Authorised share capital
20,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 200,000 200,000
16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
6,200,280 shares issued for consideration
paid in cash 62,003 62,003
4,133,520 shares issued for consideration other
than cash - fixed assets 41,335 41,335
2,066,760 shares issued as bonus shares 20,668 20,668
12,400,560 124,006 124,006
16.3 At March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 Hino Motors Limited, Japan (HML) - the

holding company and Toyota Tsusho Corporation, Japan (TTC) - an associated
company respectively held 7,357,665 (59.33%) and 3,678,833 (29.67%) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each.

16.4 HML is a Company incorporated in Japan having registered address at 1-1 Hinodai 3-
chome, Hino-shi, Tokyo. The President of HML is Mr. Yoshio Shimo. As per the latest
available financial statements which are prepared on going concern basis, HML's
auditors have expressed an unmodified opinion.

16.5 As per the shareholders agreement between HML and TTC;
- Each party has first right of refusal in case the other party intends to disinvest its
shares in the Company.
- HML has right to appoint Chairman of the Board of Directors.

2020 2019
Rupees '000
17. DEFERRED TAXATION
Credit balances arising in respect of:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowances 95,640 86,026
- surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets 127,464 113,384
223,104 199,410
Debit balances arising in respect of:
- provision for inventories obsolescence (11,434) (13,569)
- provision for doubtful trade debts, deposits,
advances and other receivables (37,115) (31,025)
- provision for retirement benefits (26,494) (25,484)
- provision for warranty (12,852) (12,406)
(87,895) (82,484)
135,209 116,926
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17.1 Deferred tax asset has not been recognised on unused tax losses and unabsorbed tax
depreciation amounting to Rs. 567.77 million (2019: Rs. 88.26 million) and Rs. 101.46
million (2019: Rs. 47.55 million) respectively, in view of lack of current and future
estimated taxable profits required to recover the benefit. Deferred tax asset on unused
tax losses will lapse after 6 years of loss occurred, however deferred tax asset on loss of
unabsorbed depreciation will be available for indefinite period.

18. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

18.1 As stated in note 2.12, the Company operates approved funded pension and gratuity
schemes for all its permanent employees and an unfunded gratuity for its contractual
employees. The schemes define the amounts of benefit that an employee will receive on
or after retirement subject to a minimum qualifying period of service under the schemes.
Actuarial valuation of these plans is carried out every year and latest actuarial valuation
was carried out as at March 31, 2020.

18.2  Plan assets held in trust are governed by local regulations which mainly include Trust
Act, 1882, Companies Act, 2017, Income Tax Rules, 2002 and Rules under the Trust
deed of the Plans. The responsibility for governance of the Plans, including investment
decisions and contribution schedules, rests with the respective Board of Trustees. The
Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees of the Company.

18.3  Details of the Funds as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

2020 2019
Funded Unfunded Funded Unfunded
Gratuity  Pension  Gratuity Gratuity  Pension  Gratuity
Fund Fund Fund Fund
. Rupees '000 >
18.4 Movement in (asset) / liability
Opening balance 11,002 (17,190) 170,386 1,071 12,937 154,369
Charge for the year 15,472 9,806 35,680 13,695 16,005 26,775
Remeasurements recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income (7,865) 30,587 (9,305) 14,652 (13,256) 5,347
Payments during the year (30,359) (5,212) (46,732) (18,416) (32,876)  (16,105)
Closing balance (11,750) 17,991 150,029 11,002 (17,190) 170,386
18.5 Balance sheet reconciliation as at
March 31
Fair value of plan assets (269,454)  (428,556) - (215,368)  (388,040) -
Present value of obligations 257,704 446,547 150,029 226,370 370,850 170,386
Recognised (asset) / liability (11,750) 17,991 150,029 11,002 (17,190) 170,386
18.6 Remeasurement recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income
Experience losses / (gains) (8,956) 20,994 (9,305) 8,795 (26,415) 5,347
Remeasurement losses on
fair value of plan assets 1,091 9,593 - 5,857 13,159 -

(7,865) 30,587 (9,305) 14,652 (13,256) 5,347
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2020 2019
Funded Funded
Gratuity  Pension Unfum?ed Gratuity  Pension U"fu“‘f“'d
Fund Fund Gratuity Fund Fund Gratuity
o Rupees '000 >
18.7 Charge for the year
Current service cost 16,026 17,004 16,200 14,367 20,248 14,704
Interest cost 29,638 48,427 19,480 15,894 29,257 12,071
Employee contribution - (4,291) - - (3,794) -
Expected return on plan assets (30,192) (51,334) - (16,566) (29,708) -
15,472 9,806 35,680 13,695 16,005 26,775
18.8 Movement in the present value of
obligation
Opening balance 226,370 370,850 170,386 198,000 361,502 154,369
Current service cost 16,026 17,004 16,200 14,367 20,248 14,704
Interest cost 29,638 48,427 19,480 15,894 29,257 12,071
Remeasurement (8,956) 20,994 (9,305) 8,795 (26,415) 5,347
Benefits paid (5,374)  (10,728)  (46,732) (10,686) (13,742)  (16,105)
Closing balance 257,704 446,547 150,029 226,370 370,850 170,386
18.9 Movement in fair value of plan assets
Opening balance 215,368 388,040 - 196,929 348,565 -
Expected return on plan assets 30,192 51,334 - 16,566 29,706 -
Remeasurement (1,091) (9,593) - (5.857) (13,159) -
Employer contributions 30,359 5,535 - 18,416 32,971 -
Employee contributions - 3,968 - - 3,699 -
Benefits paid (5,374)  (10,728) - (10,686) (13,742) -
Closing balance 269,454 428,556 - 215,368 388,040 -
18.10 Plan assets comprise of:
Government bonds 157,770 203,987 - 131,280 205,080 -
Other Bonds (TFCs) - - - - 1,799 -
Mutual funds 20,603 38,035 - 24,746 40,935 -
Bank deposits 84,256 173,844 - 48,783 120,058 -
Cash at bank 6,825 12,690 - 10,659 20,168 -
269,454 428,556 - 215,368 388,040 -
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2020 2019

Funded Unfunded Funded Unfunded
Gratuity  Pension un _e Gratuity  Pension niun _e

Gratuity Gratuity

Fund Fund Fund Fund

18.11 Key actuarial assumptions used:
Expected rate of return on plan assets (%) 11.25 11.25 - 13.25 13.25 -

Future salary increase (%) 10.00 10.00 10.00 12.25 12.25 12.25
Discount rate at March 31 (%) 11.25 11.25 11.25 13.25 13.25 13.25
Retirement age (years) 60 60 60 60 60 60

18.12 Pre-retirement mortality was assumed to be SLIC (2001-2005) for males and females,
as the case may be, rated down one year.

18.13 In case of funded plans, the Company ensures that the investment positions are
managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to
achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under the retirement
benefit plan. Within this framework, the Company’s ALM objective is to match assets to
the retirement benefit obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities with
maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due. The Company actively
monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the
expected cash outflows arising from the retirement benefit plan obligations. The
Company has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous
periods. The Company does not use derivatives to manage its risk. Investments are well
diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would not have a material
impact on the overall level of assets. A large portion of assets in 2020 consists of
treasury bills, government bonds and term deposits. The Company believes that
government securities offer the best returns over the long term with an acceptable level
of risk.

18.14 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on
fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the statement of
financial position's date.

The actuary conducts separate valuations for calculating contribution rates and the
Company contributes to the pension and gratuity funds according to the actuary's advice.
Expense of the defined benefit plan is calculated by the actuary.
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18.15 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal
assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
<+—— Rupees '000 —

Discount rate at 31 March 1.00% (66,970) 75,841
Future salary increases 1.00% 64,319 (59,023)

There is no significant change in the obligation if life expectancy increases by 1 year.

The sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of
the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the liability recognised within
the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared to the previous period.

18.16 The expected return on plan assets is based on the market expectations and depends
upon the asset portfolio of the plan, at the beginning of the period, for returns over the
entire life of the related obligation.

18.17 Based on actuary's advice, the amount of expected contribution to gratuity and pension
funds in 2020-21 will be Rs. 15.57 million and Rs. 17.51 million respectively.

18.18 The weighted average duration of pension fund, funded gratuity and unfunded gratuity is
8.36 years.

18.19 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plans.

Less than Between Between Between Over 10 Total
ayear 1-2years 2-5years 5-10years years
«+ Rupees '000 >

At March 31, 2020
Retirement benefit plans 62,517 61,736 284,832 653,188 5,937,718 6,999,991
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2020 2019
Rupees 000
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 170,443 176,166
Bills payable to

- Toyota Tsusho Corporation, Japan, group company 359,900 766,018

- Hino Motors Limited, Japan - holding company 5,208 13,778

- Toyota Tsusho, Asia Pacific PTE Ltd, group company 29,426 35,641

- Hino Motors Middle East FZE - 111,662
Accrued liabilities 518,294 590,593
Advances from customers - unsecured 1,577,312 1,394,945
Royalty payable to Hino Motors, Ltd. Japan,

' holding company - note 19.1 68,198 21,675
Security deposits from dealers - note 19.2 37,000 37,000
Employees related obligation - note 19.3 70,395 65,985
Tax deducted at source and payable to

statutory authorities 4,244 4,307
Sindh sales tax on services 10,726 2,818
Interest payable - note 19.4 108,282 113,062
Provisions - note 19.5 326,924 309,323
Others 29,548 9,379

3,315,900 3,652,352

19.1  During the year, royalty amounting to Rs. 75.7 million (2019: Rs. 443.3 million) has been
paid by the Company to Hino Motors, Ltd. Japan- Parent Company, having registered
office at 1-1 Hinodai 3-chome, Hino-shi, Tokyo.

19.2  This represents amounts received from dealers of the Company, which are utilised for
the purpose of business in accordance with the related agreements.

19.3  This represents contributions made by employees towards the sale price of vehicles
provided to them by the Company in accordance with the Company's vehicle policy.
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19.4  This represents interest payable on short-term borrowings.

2020 2019
Rupees '000

19.5 PROVISIONS

Provision for compensated absences 100,608 82,111
Provision for warranty services 44 317 45213
Provision for infrastructure cess 23,249 23,249
Provision for custom duties 158,750 158,750

326,924 309,323

19.5.1 Movements in each class of provision during the year are set out below.

Provision for Provision Provision for Provision  Total
compensated for warranty infrastructure for custom

absences services cess duties
< Rupees '000 >
Balance as at April 1, 2019 82,111 45,213 23,249 158,750 309,323
Recognised during the year 42,052 4,862 - - 46,914
Expenses against provision (23,555) (5,758) - - (29,313)
Balance as at
March 31, 2020 100,608 44,317 23,249 168,750 326,924

Provision for Provision Provision for Provision Total
compensated for warranty infrastructure for custom

absences services cess duties
< Rupees '000 >
Balance as at April 1, 2018 77,028 43,490 23,249 158,750 302,517
Recognised during the year 25.444 7672 ) i} 33.116
Expenses again81 prOViSiorl (20,361) (5,949) _ _ (26,310)
Balance as at
March 31, 2019 82,111 45,213 23,249 158,750 309,323
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2020 2019
Rupees 000
20. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - Secured
Short-term loans - note 20.1 4,100,000 4,600,000
Running finance - note 20.2 15,238 2,166,074
4,115,238 6,766,074
201 The short-term loans have been obtained from various banks and carry mark-up at

rates ranging from one month KIBOR + 0.2% per annum to one-month KIBOR + 0.3%
per annum (2019: one month KIBOR + 0.2% per annum to one-month KIBOR + 0.3%
per annum). The loans are repayable by April 24, 2020.

20.2 The facilities for running finance under mark-up arrangements with various banks
amounted to Rs. 11.90 billion (2019: Rs. 11.90 billion) of which the amount remaining
unutilised at the year end was Rs. 7.8 billion (2019: Rs. 5.14 billion). The rates of mark-
up applicable on running finance are based on KIBOR and range from one month
KIBOR + 0.5% to three month KIBOR + 1.25% (2019: one month KIBOR + 0.5% to
three month KIBOR + 1.25%) per annum.

20.3 The facilities for opening the letters of credit and guarantees as at March 31, 2020
amounted to Rs. 13.12 billion (2019: Rs. 12.9 billion) of which the amount remaining
unutilised at the year end was Rs. 9.6 billion (2019: Rs. 9.3 billion).

20.4 The above facilities are secured by way of hypothecation charge on inventory and intra-
group guarantees arranged through banks.

21, CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMENTS

21.1 As at March 31, 2020, the Company has received provisional refunds of
Rs. 519.05 million (2019: Rs. 519.05 million) from the sales tax department against
undertakings and bank guarantees.

21.2 Commitments for capital expenditure as at March 31, 2020 amounted to Rs. 1.86
million (2019: Rs 17.83 million).
2020 2019
Rupees ’000
22. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUTOMERS
Gross sales 16,291,256 23,377,035
Sales tax (2,374,806) (3,397,906)
13,916,450 19,979,129
Commission and discounts (725,390) (848,290)

13,191,060 19,130,839

221 Sales to Government institutions of Rs. 3.23 billion (2019: Rs. 3.33 billion) account for
24.49 percent (2019: 17.39 percent) of the net sales.
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23. TOTAL COST OF SALES, DISTRIBUTION COST AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

COST OF DISTRIBUTION ADMINISTRATIVE TOTAL
SALES COosT EXPENSES
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
« Rupees "000 >
Raw materials consumed 10,857,447 15,896,222 - - - - 10,857,447 15,896,222
Staff costs - note 23.1 654,041 810,441 170,685 176,963 132,443 147,172 957,168 1,134,576
Depreciation and amortisation 172,581 171,934 19,545 16,645 38,673 48,849 230,799 237,428
Rent, rates and taxes 12,820 23,495 9,439 9,648 12,396 14,057 34,655 47,200
Insurance 8,812 8,480 1,681 1,617 7,793 7,499 18,286 17,596
Vehicle running and maintenance 21,158 15,764 19,317 16,438 16,724 12,661 57,199 44 863
Fuel and power 66,055 70,294 3,322 3,627 11,186 10,061 80,563 83,982
Travelling and entertainment 7,718 11,311 13,999 18,193 11,226 13,495 32,943 42,999
Repair and maintenance 25,408 48,364 1,712 742 9,571 14,763 36,691 63,869
Communication and stationery 6,578 5,224 5,103 5,026 7,656 8,984 19,337 19,234
Royalty and technical assistance 124,440 131,573 - - - - 124,440 131,573
(Reversal) / Provision for obsolete
stock-in-trade, stores and spares (10,020) 9,732 - - - - (10,020) 9,732
Legal and professional charges 5,198 2,408 1,893 2,516 17,209 11,331 24,300 16,253
Auditors' remuneration - note 23.2 - - - - 4,457 4,160 4,457 4,160
Security and maintenance - 432 7,533 4,298 69,365 71,869 76,898 76,599
Advertising and sales promotion - - 15,149 17,600 - - 15,149 17,600
Product maintenance charges - - 65,161 73,714 - - 65,161 73,714
Warranty services - - 10,846 7,672 - - 10,846 7,672
Other expenses 10,136 13,248 5,729 4,896 16,967 13,930 32,832 32,074

11,962,372 17,218,920 351,114 359,595 355,666 378,831 12,669,152 17,957,346

Opening stock of work in process 15,532 33,054
Closing stock of work in process (30,413) (15,532)
Cost of goods manufactured 11,847,491 17,236,442
Opening stock of finished goods 723,362 343,457
Closing stock of finished goods (590,773) (723,362)

12,080,080 16,856,537
Consumption of trading goods 1,281,391 1,160,988

13,361,471 18,017,525

23.1 Staff costs

Salaries, wages, allowances

and staff welfare 598,786 758,395 157,492 166,586 121,085 136,528 877,363 1,061,509
Charge for defined benefit plans 44,047 40,123 8,807 7,557 8,104 8,795 60,958 56,475
Charge for defined contribution plan 11,208 11,923 4,386 2,820 3,254 1,849 18,848 16,592

654,041 810,441 170,685 176,963 132,443 147,172 957,169 1,134,576
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2020 2019
Rupees '000
23.2 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 2,050 2,050
Fee for limited review of half yearly financial
statements and other certifications 1,955 1,690
Out of pocket expenses 452 420
4 457 4,160
24, OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Return on PLS savings accounts 7,358 42,868
Return on deposit accounts 408 55,400
7,766 98,268
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 14,085 5,633
Others
Scrap sales 21,600 32,293
Commission from group company 38,084 922
Insurance claim 113 -
Others 1,241 10,624
82,889 147,640
25. OTHER EXPENSES
Donations and charities - note 25.1 and 25.2 - 1,300
Others - 72
- 1,372
251 Donation to following organisation is equal to or
exceeds Rs. 0.5 million.
- Darul Sukoon - 1,200

25.2 None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donees.

2020 2019
26. FINANCE COST Rupees '000
Exchange loss - net 179,992 815,803
Mark-up on short-term borrowings 835,656 187,502
Bank charges and others 19,131 18,492

1,034,779 1,021,797
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2020 2019
Rupees 000
27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current
- for the year 209,560 296,709
- for prior year - 52,486
Deferred 1,418 3,928
210,978 353,123
2020 2019
Rupees ’000
271 Relationship between tax expense and
accounting loss
Loss before taxation (1,843,998) (520,174)
Tax calculated at the rate of 29% (2019: 29%) (534,759) (150,850)
Asset not recognised on tax loss 533,416 146,906
Minimum tax 209,206 227,192
Effect of final tax regime (9,140) 77,389
Prior year impact - 52,486
Others 12,255 -
Tax charge for the year 210,978 353,123
2020 2019
28. LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC
Loss after taxation attributable to
ordinary shareholders (Rupees '000) (2,054,976) (873,297)
Number of ordinary shares (in '000) issued and
subscribed at end of the year 12,401 12,401
Loss per share - basic Rs. (165.71) Rs. (70.42)
28.1 A diluted earnings / (loss) per share has not been presented as the Company does not

have any convertible instruments in issue as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019
which would have any effect on the loss per share if the option to convert is exercised.
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2020 2019
Rupees '000
29, CASH GENERATED FROM / (UTILISED IN) OPERATIONS
Loss before taxation (1,843,998) (520,174)
Add / (less): Adjustments for non cash charges
and other items
Depreciation and amortisation 230,799 237,428
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets (14,085) (5,533)
Retirement benefits charge 60,958 56,475
Mark-up on short-term borrowings 835,656 187,502
Impairment of investment - 72
Income on PLS savings and deposit accounts (7,766) (98,268)
Loss before working capital changes (738,436) (142,498)
EFFECT ON CASH FLOW DUE TO WORKING
CAPITAL CHANGES
Decrease / (increase) in current assets
Inventories 4,200,119 (3,102,778)
Trade debts 590,272 (244,747)
Loans and advances 4 546 729
Trade deposits and prepayments 55,303 7,827
Refunds due from the government - sales tax 594,002 (816,799)
Other receivables (14,694) 438
5,429,548 (4,155,330)
Decrease in current liabilities
Trade and other payables (331,672) (5,157,121)
5,097,876 (9,312,451)
4,359,440 (9,454,949)
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2020 2019
Rupees 000
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances - note 15 138,607 49 683
Short-term borrowings - secured - note 20 (4,115,238)  (6,766,074)

(3,976,631) _ (6,716,391)

31. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration of the Chief
Executive Officer, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER DIRECTORS EXECUTIVES
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
< Rupees 000 >
Managerial remuneration

and allowances 2,732 6,711 2,500 10,479 81,635 51,260
Bonus - 2,802 - 4,937 14,650 20,197
Retirement benefits - - - - 13,670 14,540
Rent and utilities - - - 448 23,857 16,738
Leave passage 197 560 176 870 3,617 2,903
Club expenses - - - - 978 566
Medical expenses 212 188 211 280 3,516 2,066
3,141 10,261 2,887 17,014 141,923 108,270

Number of persons 1 1 1 2 24 16

311 The Managing Director, Directors and certain Executives of the Company are provided
with free use of Company maintained cars and housing facilities in accordance with their
terms of employment.

31.2 Consultancy fee paid to the Chairman amounts to Rs. 3.6 million (2019: Rs. 3.52
million). The Chairman is also provided with free use of Company maintained car.

31.3 In addition to above, fee paid to the Chairman and independent non - executive directors
(Pakistan resident only) for attending meetings during the year amounted to Rs. 0.33
million (2019: Rs. 0.38 million) and Rs. 0.78 million (2019: Rs. 0.3 million), respectively.
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2020 2019
<4+—— Units —»
32. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Plant capacity (single shift without overtime)
- Chassis 6,000 6,000
- Bodies 1,800 1,800

Actual production
- Chassis 1,765 3,201
- Bodies 342 802

321 Chassis and bodies production during the year was as per market demand.
33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties:

Relationship Nature of transaction 2020 2019
Rupees '000
i. Holding company - Dividend paid - 647,987
- Purchase of goods 90,762 358,164
- Royalty charge 120,761 126,811
- Technical assistance fee 3,679 5,029
ii. Other related parties - Purchase of goods 4,811,150 13,750,329
- Sale of goods 955,745 1,164,722
- Dividend paid - 308,246
- Purchase of property,
plant and equipment 88,050 37,730
- Commission earned 38,084 922
- Payments to retirement
benefit plans 77,547 88,801

331 Outstanding balances with related parties as at year end have been included in trade
debts, other receivables and trade and other payables respectively. These are settled in
ordinary course of business.

33.2 Details of compensation to key management personnel comprising of Managing Director
and Directors is disclosed in note 31.
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33.3 Following are the related parties / associated companies with whom the Company had
entered into transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place.

Basis of regate % of
S-No. Company Name association Agls:argholding
1 Hino Motors Limited, Japan Parent 59.33%
2 Toyota Tsusho Corporation, Japan Group Company 29.67%
3 Hino Motors (China) Company Limited Group Company N/A
4 Hino Motors Middle East FZE Group Company N/A
5 Hino Motors Sale (Thailand) Limited Group Company N/A
6 Toyota Tsusho Asia Pacific Pte Limited Group Company N/A
7 Toyotsu Machinery Corporation Group Company N/A
8 Indus Motor Company Limited Group Company N/A
9 JS Bank Limited Zommon Directorshi N/A

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial assets and liabilities

Interest / Mark-up bearing Non Interest / Mark-up bearing Total
Maturity Maturity Sub-total Maturity Maturity Sub-total
up to one after one up to one after one
year year year year
< Rupees '000 >
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans and advances - - - 16,403 25,063 41,466 41,466
Deposits - - - 21,134 7,227 28,361 28,361
Trade debts - - - 369,410 - 369,410 369,410
Other receivables - - - 14,694 - 14,694 14,694
Cash and bank balances 118,254 - 118,254 20,353 - 20,353 138,607
2020 118,254 - 118,254 441,994 32,290 474,284 592,538
2019 22 966 - 22,966 1,067,533 32,787 1,100,320 1,123,286
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables - - - 1,289,299 - 1,289,299 1,289,299
Short-term borrowings 4,115,238 - 4,115,238 - - - 4,115,238
Unclaimed dividend - - - 13,305 - 13,305 13,305
2020 4,115,238 - 4,115,238 1,302,604 - 1,302,604 5.417,842
2019 6.766.074 - 6.766.074 1,851,498 - 1,851,498 8,617,572

On statement of financial position gap

2020 _ (3,996,984) - (3,996,984) (860,610) 32,290 (828,320) _ (4,825.304)
2019 _ (6.743.108) - (6,743,108) (783,965) 32,787 (751,178) _ (7.494.286)

OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Commitments for capital expenditure 1,865
Letters of credit 796,250
Letters of guarantee 2,761,037
2020 3,559,152
2019 3,592 087

The effective interest / mark-up rates for the monetary financial assets and liabilities
are mentioned in respective notes to the financial statements.
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(i) Interest/ Mark-up rate risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in the market interest rates. As at March 31, 2020 the
Company's interest bearing financial assets amounted to Rs. 0.12 billion
(2019: Rs.0.02 billion), and had the interest rates varied by 100 basis points with all
the other variables held constant, loss before tax for the year would have been
approximately higher / lower by Rs. 1.18 million (2019: Rs. 0.23 million).

The sensitivity of 100 basis points movement in the interest rates has been used as
historically (five years) floating interest rates have moved by an average of 100
basis points per annum.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised if counterparts
failed to perform as contracted. The financial assets exposed to credit risk amount
to Rs. 0.59 billion (2019: Rs. 1.12 billion).

The carrying amounts of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired
are as under:

2020 2019
Rupees ’000

Loans and advances 41,466 37,897
Deposits 28,361 76,024
Trade receivables 260,211 901,819
Other receivables 14,694 -
Cash and bank balances 138,607 49 683

483,339 1,065,423

The Company believes that it is not materially exposed to credit risk as major part
of these financial assets comprise of receivable from government institutions and
bank balances which represent low credit risk as they are placed with banks and
other financial institutions having good credit ratings assigned by credit rating
agencies.

The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposure, limiting
transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the
creditworthiness of counterparties.

The other financial assets are neither material to the financial statements nor
exposed to any significant credit risk.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the Company's inability in raising funds to meet its
commitments. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash
and bank balances and the availability of financing through banking arrangements.
Management monitors rolling forecast of the Company's liquidity reserve which
comprises of undrawn borrowing facility and cash and cash equivalents on the
basis of expected cash flow.
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(iv) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises mainly when receivables and payables exist due to
transactions based on currencies other than Pak Rupee. As at March 31, 2020
payable exposed to foreign exchange risk is of Rs. 462.72 million
(2019: Rs. 948.77 million). The liability is mainly denominated in Japanese Yen.

As at March 31, 2020, if the Pak Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 13%
(2019: 7%) against Japanese Yen with all other variables held constant, loss before
tax for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 60.15 million
(2019: loss before tax would have been higher / lower by Rs. 66.41 million), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of Japanese Yen
denominated financial assets and liabilities.

The sensitivity of foreign exchange rate looks at the outstanding foreign exchange
balances of the Company as at the statement of financial position's date and
assumes this is the position for a full twelve-month period. The volatility percentage
for movement in foreign exchange rates has been used due to the fact that
historically (5 years) rate has moved on average basis by the mentioned
percentage per annum.

(v) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial
statements approximate their fair values.

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide adequate returns for
shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or obtain / repay long term financing
from / to financial institutions.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the
debt equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as under:

Debt equity ratio = Debt divided by debt plus total equity.

The debt equity ratios as at March 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees ‘000
Short-term borrowings - secured 3,976,631 6,716,391
Total equity 1,709,088 3,560,412
Total 5,685,719 10,276,803
Debt equity ratio 70:30 65:35

The change in the debt equity ratio is mainly due to the repayment of borrowings and
loss after tax during the current year.
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36.

37.

38.

2020 2019
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employees at March 31
- Permanent 372 376
- Contractual 453 602
825 978
Average number of employees during the year
- Permanent 375 372
- Contractual 516 610
891 982

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions
of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

DETAILS OF OPERATING ASSETS SOLD

The details of operating assets sold, having net book value in excess of
Rs. 500,000 each are as follows:

Description Cost Accumulated Book Sale Gain/(loss)  Mode of  Particulars of purchaser
depreciation value proceeds disposal
< Rupees '000 »
Motor Vehicle 15,329 8,078 7,251 7,450 199 Auction Rajput Trawels (Rathore Logistics)
Near City District Goverment
Terminal general bus stand,
Multan.
' 5,749 3,565 2,184 2,184 - Company policy Mr. Aslam Sanjrani - Chairman
! 1,608 198 1,410 1,453 43 ! Mr. Shafgatullah Khan - Employee
" 1,391 436 955 1,042 87 ! Mr. Syed Muhammad Rehanuddin - Employee
" 1,391 468 923 97 4 " Mr. Shoaib Suleman - Ex-Employee
' 2217 1,374 843 880 ki ' Mr. Fahim Ajjaz Sabzwari (CFO) - Employee
2,217 1,374 843 880 i ' Mr. Adil Mohiuddin Shah - Employee
1,794 1,005 789 1172 383 ! Mr. Rehan Zafar Siddiqui - Ex-Employee
: 1,129 493 636 678 4 " Mr, Saqib Khalil - Employee
" 1,714 1,152 562 1,088 526 " Mr. Muhammad Fahim lgbal - Employee
' 1,663 1,118 545 1,037 492 " Mr. Maseeh Ur Rehman - Employes
' 1,663 1,118 545 1,037 492 " Mr. Rizwan Ahmed Soomro - Employes
' 1,663 1,118 545 968 423 ' Mr. Muhammad Ahmer Siddiqui - Employee
' 1,663 1,118 545 968 423 ' Mr. Shakil Ahmed - Employee
" 1,663 1,118 545 968 423 " Mr. Ahsan Waseem Akhtar - Employee
" 1,663 1,118 545 968 423 " Mr. Muhammad Zahid Hasan - Employee
' 1,663 1,118 545 629 8 ' Mr. Mehmood Ahmed Khan - Employes
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39. IMPACT OF COVID-19 (CORONA VIRUS)

The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all across the world has not only
endangered human lives but has also adversely impacted the global economy. On March
20, 2020, Government of the Sindh announced a temporary lock down as a measure to
reduce spread of the COVID-19. Complying with the government directive, the Company
temporarily suspended its operations from March 23, 2020. In the Company’s case, the
lockdown was subsequently relaxed from June 03, 2020.

After implementing all the necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to ensure
safety of employees, the Company henceforth resumed its operations and has taken all
necessary steps to ensure smooth and adequate continuation of its business in order to
maintain business performance despite slowed down economic activity. The lockdown
has caused disruptions in supply chain including supply to the customers resulting in a
decline in sales. It is also expected that the outbreak may result in lower demand in
future. Due to this, management has assessed the accounting implications of these
developments on these financial statements, including but not limited to the following
areas:

- expected credit losses under IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’;

- the impairment of tangible and intangible assets under IAS 36, ‘Impairment of
assets’;

- the net realisable value of inventory under IAS 2, ‘Inventories’;

- provisions and contingent liabilities under IAS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets’, including onerous contracts; and

- going concern assumption used for the preparation of these financial statements.

According to management’s assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the
effects of COVID-19 in these financial statements.

40. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for
the purpose of comparison and better presentation, the effects of which are not material.

41. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue in the Board of
Directors meeting held on July 27, 2020.

.

A b B

Dirgctor Chief Executive Officer

é,fl.,‘ .
hief Financi
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Pattern of Shareholding

As at March 31, 2020
No of Shareholders Shareholdings Total Shares Held
From To
814 1 100 25,550
625 101 500 119,602
V4 501 1000 54,919
55 1001 5000 122,741
10 5001 10000 71,190
14 10001 100000 533,818
1 100001 1000000 436,242
1 3000001 4000000 3,678,833
1 7000001 8000000 7,357,665
1592 12,400,560
Shareholders' Category No. of Shareholders No. of Shares Held Percentage of holding
Foreign Investors 5 1,064,158 89.22%
Directors 2 10 0.00%
Financial Institutions 5 436,758 3.52%
Insurance Companies 2 3,650 0.03%
Joint Stock Companies 15 136,724 1.10%
Individuals 1561 711,078 5.73%
Others 2 48,182 0.40%
Grand Total 1592 12,400,560 100%
4 )

B Foreign Investors
Directors

B Financial Institutions

H Insurance Companies
Joint Stock Companies

N Individuals

H Others
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As at March 31, 2020

Shareholders' Category No. of Shareholders No. of Shares Held

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children
Mr. Mushtaq Malik 1 5
Ms. Nargis Ali Akbar Ghaloo 1 5

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

Hino Motors Ltd. (Hinopak Motors Limited is Toyota Group Company and subsidiary of 1 7,357,665
Hino Motors Ltd., Japan. Toyota Motors Corporation is the ultimate parent of the group)

Toyota Tsusho Corporation, Japan 1 3,678,833
NIT and ICP

CDC - Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust 1 436,242
N.B.P. Trustee Dept. Head Office 1 200
Executives

Mr. Muzaffar Anjum 1 120
Mr. Naushad Riaz 1 100
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Financial Institutions 1 286

Insurance Companies
Dawood Family Takaful Limited 2 3,650

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

AFC Umbrella Fund 1 17,560
First Al-Noor Modaraba 1 10
First Tri-Star Modaraba 1 20

Share holders holding 10% or more voting interest

Hino Motors Ltd., Japan 1 7,357,665
Toyota Tsusho Corporation 1 3,678,833

General Public (Individuals)

A. Local 1559 710,858
B. Foreign 1 100
Others
Amin Tai (Private) Limited 1 54,450
Azee Securities (Private) Limited 1 20
Eleven Stars Securities (Pvt) Ltd 1 49,500
Fawad Yusuf Securities (Pvt.) Limited 1 29,800
Fikrees (Private) Limited 1 1,250
Hermez and Company (Pvt) Ltd 1 20
Loads Limited 1 150
M. M. Securities (Pvt.) Limited 1 420
Maple Leaf Capital Limited 1 1
Margalla Financial (Private) Limited 1 160
Muhammad Bashir Kasmani (Private) Limited 1 500
S.Z. Securities (Private) Limited 1 2
Sherman Securities (Private) Limited 1 1
Sofcom (Private) Limited 1 50
Tencore Il Partners LP 1 10,000
Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Emp Benevolent Fund Trust 1 1,633
Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Employees Pension Fund 1 46,549
UHF Consulting (Private) Limited 1 400
1592 12,400,560
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 35" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of Hinopak
Motors Limited (the Company) will be held at the Registered Office of the Company situated at D-2,
S.L.T.E., Manghopir Road, Karachi on Wednesday, August 26, 2020 at 10:30 a.m.

Due to ongoing pandemic of COVID-19, the Company has also arranged participation of shareholders
through video facility. The detail procedure is mentioned later in the notes. Following businesses wiill
be transacted during the meeting:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2020, together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors.

2. To appoint auditors for the ensuing year and fix their remuneration.
3. Any other business with the permission of the Chair.
SPECIAL BUSINESS

1. To consider and if thought fit pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolutions as
Special Resolutions for increase in Authorized Share Capital of the Company from Rs.
200,000,000 to Rs. 1,000,000,000 and necessary alterations in Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company:

“RESOLVED THAT as and by the Special Resolution that the Authorized Capital of the Company
be and is hereby increased from Rs. 200,000,000 (Rupees Two hundred million) divided into
20,000,000 (Twenty million) shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs. 1,000,000,000 (Rupees
One billion) divided into 100,000,000 (Hundred million) shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each with
the rights, privileges and conditions attaching thereto provided by the regulations of the
Company for the time being with power to increase and reduce the capital of the Company and
to divide the shares in the capital for the time being into several classes and to attach thereto
respectively such deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges or conditions as may be
determined by or in accordance with the regulations of the Company and to vary, modify or
abrogate any such rights or conditions in such manner as may for the time being be provided by
the Regulations of the Company.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Clause V of the Memorandum of Association and Article 6 of the
Articles of Association of the Company is accordingly deleted and replaced with the following
new Clause V and Article 6 respectively:

New Clause V of Memorandum of Association

“The Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,000,000,000 (Rupees One billion) divided into
100,000,000 (Hundred million) shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each, with the rights, privileges and
conditions attaching thereto provided by the regulations of the Company for the time being with
power to increase and reduce the capital of the Company and to divide the shares in the capital
for the time being into several classes and to attach thereto respectively such deferred, qualified
or special rights, privileges or conditions as may be determined by or in accordance with the
regulations of the Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights or conditions in such
manner as may for the time being be provided by the Regulations of the Company.”

New Article 6 of Articles of Association

“The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 1,000,000,000/- (Rupees One billion) divided
into 100,000,000 (Hundred million) shares of Rs. 10/- each.”
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“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary, be and is hereby singly
authorized to take all steps necessary, ancillary and incidental for increase in Authorized Capital but not
limited to execute such documents as may be required in relations to increase in the Authorized Capital
and obtaining all requisite regulatory approvals, engaging legal advisor(s) and consultant(s) for the
purposes of the above, filing of the requisite application(s), statutory forms and all other documents as may
be required to be filed with SECP and any other authority, submitting all such documents as may be
required, executing all such amendments or substitutions to any of the foregoing as may be required in
respect of the increase in Authorized Capital and all other matters incidental or ancillary thereto.”

A statement of material facts as required under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, covering the above
mentioned special business is annexed with this notice of annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
SYED JUNAID ALI
Company Secretary
Karachi:
August 05, 2020
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Notes

Online Participation in the Annual General Meeting

Considering the evolving situation on the spread of the COVID-19 the Company has decided to
facilitate its shareholders by also allowing the shareholders to attend the meeting through
video link for the safety and in the best interest of the shareholders. Therefore, shareholders
who are interested in attending the AGM proceedings through video link are required to
update their valid e-mail ID with the Share Registrar, latest by August 17, 2020. A detailed
procedure shall be communicated through e-mail directly to the shareholders who have
provided their valid e-mail IDs and same shall be placed at the Company's website
https://www.hinopak.com in the investor relations section.

The shareholders who have already updated their valid e-mail IDs with the Company or its
Share Registrar and are interested to attend AGM online may send below information along
with valid copy of both sides of CNIC with the subject “Registration for Hinopak Motors Limited
AGM" at info@hinopak.com for their / their appointed proxy’s verification. Such information
should be sent from their duly registered valid e-mail ID for the registration purposes latest by
August 21, 2020.

Shareholder | Folio / CDC | No. of shares| CNIC No. Cell No. |Registered Email
Name No. held ID

iv.

Shareholders can also provide their comments / suggestions for the agenda items of the AGM
at the email address info@hinopak.com.

Members are therefore, encouraged to attend the AGM through video link or by consolidating
their attendance through proxies.

Closure of Share Transfer Books
The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from August 19, 2020 to August
26, 2020 (both days inclusive). No transfer will be accepted for registration during this period.

Transfers received at Share Registrar Office M/s FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Limited, at the close
of business on August 18, 2020, will be treated in time to attend and vote at the meeting.

For Attending the Meeting

In case of individuals, the Account Holders or sub-account holders and/or the persons whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate their identity by showing original Computerized National
Identity Cards (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution / Power of Attorney with the
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (if it has not been provided earlier) at the
time of attending the meeting.

Proxy

A member entitled to attend and vote at this General Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to
attend, speak and vote in his place at the meeting. Instrument appointing a proxy must be
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least forty-eight hours before the time
of the meeting.

To facilitate identification for right to attend the Annual General Meeting, shareholder whose
holdings are on the Central Depository System (CDS) or his Proxy should authenticate his
identity by showing his original CNIC or original passport at the time of attending the meeting;
along with the Participant's Identity Number and Shareholder's account number allocated by
the Central Depository Company.
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In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' Resolution / Power of Attorney with
specimen signhature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

V. Notice to Shareholders who have not provided their CNIC
The Individual Members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) to the Company / Share Registrar, are once again reminded to
send the same at the earliest directly to Company’s Share Registrar, M/s FAMCO Associates
(Pvt.) Limited. In case of non-receipt of the copy of a valid CNIC, the Company would be
constrained under section 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, to withhold dividend (if any) of
such shareholders.

vi. Change of Address
The Shareholders are requested to intimate any changes in their addresses to the Share
Registrar, M/s FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Limited.

vii. Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts through CD
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide SRO 470(1)/2016 dated May 3T+,
2016, has allowed companies to circulate the annual audited accounts together with reports
thereon to its members through CD/DVD/USB at their registered addresses instead of
transmitting the same in hard copies. In view of the above, the Company has dispatched its
Annual Report for the year ended March 31, 2020, to its shareholders in the form of CD. Any
member requiring printed copy of Annual Report may submit the duly filled request form
placed on the Company’s website to our Share Registrar, M/s FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Limited.

viii. Video-link Facility to Members
If the Company receives consent from the members holding at least 10% shareholding residing
in a city, to participate in the meeting through video-link at least 07 days prior to date of the
meeting, the Company will arrange facility of video-link in that city subject to availability of
such facility in that city.

To avail this facility please provide the following information to our Share Registrar, M/s
FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Limited.

I/We, of , being a member of Hinopak
Motors Limited, holder of ordinary share(s) as per Registered
Folio/CDC Account No. hereby opt for video conference
facility at

Signature of Member(s)

ix. Placement of Financial Statements on Website:
The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 along with reports
have been placed on the website of the Company: https://www.hinopak.com/finance.htm
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
PERTAINING TO THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

This statement sets forth the material facts concerning the special business listed hereinabove,
to be transacted at the 35" Annual General Meeting to be held on August 26, 2020.

The amendments in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company to increase
the Authorized Share Capital are being carried out to offer more flexibility for any possible
increase in the paid-up capital of the Company in future. Accordingly, the Board of the
Directors of the Company have recommended to increase the Authorized Share Capital from
Rs. 200,000,000 (Rupees Two hundred miillion) divided into 20,000,000 (Twenty million)
ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 1,000,000,000 (Rupees One billion) divided into
100,000,000 (Hundred million) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each. The new ordinary shares when
issued shall rank pari passu with the existing ordinary shares in all respects.

None of the directors of the Company have any direct or indirect interest in the above said
special business except to the extent of their shareholdings.
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PROXY FORM

I/We of

being a Shareholder of HINOPAK MOTORS LIMITED and holding Ordinary Shares as per
Register Folio No. or "CDC" Participant's 1.D. No. AlcNo. _______ hereby
appoint Mr. / Ms. of or failing him/her Mr. / Ms.

of as my/our Proxy in my/our absence to attend and

vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 35" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on

Wednesday, August 26, 2020 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signature

Affix Revenue

(Signature must be agreed with the Specimen Stamp of five

signature registered with the Company) rupees

Witness 1 Witness 2
Signature Signature

Name Name
Address Address

CNIC or Passport No. CNIC or Passport No.

NOTES:
1. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company may
appoint any person as his/her proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. The proxy shall have the

right to attend, speak and vote in place of the shareholder appointing him/her at the meeting.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the Shareholder or by his/her Attorney, duly
authorised in writing and person appointed proxy. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors
resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form to

the company.

The Proxy Form duly completed must be deposited at the Company's Registered Office at D-2,
S.L.T.E., Manghopir Road, P.O. Box No. 10714, Karachi - 75700 not less than 48 hours before the time of
holding the meeting.

Shareholders whose holdings are in the Central Depository System (CDS) and their proxies both
should attach with this form, attested copies of their Computerised National Identity Card or
(attested copies of first four pages of their passport). To facilitate identification at the AGM, the proxy
should bring his/her original Computerised National Identity Card or passport. In case of corporate
entity, the Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee

shall be produced at the time of the meeting.
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The Company Secretary
Hinopak Motors Limited

D-2, S.I.T.E., Manghopir Road,
P. O. Box No. 10714,

Karachi - 75700
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